ORIENT VICTORY CHINA

@ R b Ed

Orient Victory China Holdings Limited
KRB P BEBEZEERAERLL2A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 265)

£ 3 ANNUAL REPORT 20




ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

CONTENTS

Corporate Information 2
Chairman’s Statement 6
Management Discussion and Analysis 8
Biographies of Directors and Senior Management 13
Report of the Directors 16
Corporate Governance Report 28
Independent Auditors’ Report 77
Consolidated Income Statement 80
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 81
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 82
Statement of Financial Position 84
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 85
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 86
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 88

Five Year Financial Summary 203



2 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jianhua
Ms. Xu Yongmei

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Yankuan (appointed on 18 February 2015)
Mr. Zhou Jiangyong (resigned on 18 February 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dong Xiaojie
Mr. He Qi
Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery (Chairman)

Mr. He Qi

Mr. Li Yankuan (appointed on 18 February 2015)
Mr. Zhou Jiangyong (resigned on 18 February 2015)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Dong Xiaojie (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Baodong
Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman)
Mr. He Qi
Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ip Pui Sum

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants



PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Bank of Nanjing Company Limited
Daxinggong Sub-branch,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province

REGISTERD OFFICE

Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square P. O. Box 2804,
Grand Cayman KY1-1112,
Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

2603, 26/F Harbour Centre,
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2014 3

CORPORATE INFORMATION

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited
A18/F Asia Orient Tower,
Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong,

STOCK CODE

265

WEBSITE

http://www.orientvictorychina.com.hk






CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS




6 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Orient Victory
China Holdings Limited (“Orient Victory” or the “Company’, stock code: 265,
formerly known as South China Holdings Limited), I am pleased to present the annual
report (the “Annual Report”) of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 4 September 2014, the controlling shareholder of the Company was changed to
Orient Victory Real Estate Group Holdings Limited (“Orient Victory Real Estate”)
upon completion of a sale and purchase agreement relating to the sale of 1,185,210,894
ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”).

On 3 October 2014, after close of the mandatory general offer, Orient Victory Real
Estate acquired a further of 145,952,110 Shares, which increased its shareholding to
a total of 1,331,163,004 Shares, which constituted approximately 73% of the total
issued capital of the Company. Orient Victory Real Estate is an investment holding company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability.

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$124.67 million, representing a decrease of 37.8%
compared to turnover of HK$200.56 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The profit attributable to owners of the Company was
HKS$1.03 million, representing a profit of HK0.06 cent per Share, as compared to the profit of HK$21.81 million for corresponding period
of last year, the profit decreased by 95.3% and the profit per Share decreased by HK1.14 cent.

STRATEGIC POSITION

The past year holds special meanings for Orient Victory. The management of the Group has been reshuffled, followed by a change of
the Company’s name to “Orient Victory China Holdings Limited” which reflected the new development stage of the Group’s business.
Taking advantage of the talents and experiences of the strong management team, we are pursuing business diversification, prepared to seize
any market opportunities that may arise both in China and the globe, in order to give strong impetus to the continuous development of
business.

Travel Related and Other Services

For the business which involves the sale of air tickets and other travel-related services principally provided to corporate clients (the
“Corporate Travel Business”), the global aviation market benefits from the drop in oil price and we expect that our Corporate Travel
Business will be able to enjoy steady growth. The Company will also deploy resources in marketing, promotion and technology with an
aim to enhance our market position in the corporate travel market, including the MICE sector (Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and
Exhibitions) and hotel booking business as appropriate. We will continue to focus on internal training. Further, in order to offer better
quality services to customers and to benefit from market growth potential, we will join hands with our Hong Kong, Mainland China
and/or overseas partners in the travel industry to roll out an internet booking platform for corporate travels.
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Trading and Retail of Jewellery

For our jewellery business, we intend to cope with the gloomy outlook of the bullion
and jewellery markets by taking the following initiatives: firstly, we will step up our
marketing efforts so as to grasp a larger market share; secondly, we intend to increase
the turnover of bullion, increase the variety of our jewellery products, especially those
with innovative designs, and follow the policy of small profits and quick turnover so as

to increase sales revenue.

New Business

Our management has identified the health care market in China as a possible new
focus of development. The Group intends to gradually tap into the business of health
care services related to hospitals, treatments, rehabilitation and senior care through
acquisition of a suitable target company to be identified, self development and/

or business co-operation. Health-check and monitoring, health assessment and

consultancy, and health improvement and protection operations may also be set up
and launched should suitable opportunities arise. All these initiatives are to enable the Company to envisage a gradual development of

business in the health management industry.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Company will solidify and strengthen existing business, while seeking opportunities to expand into new business
with a view to enhancing recurrent income of the Group and also returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). On
behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and business partners for their continued support, and the Board,
management and all our staff members for their hard work and dedicated services. Looking ahead into 2015, T believed that with your

persisting support and assistance, we can perform to the highest standard which is the best way to requite your unrelenting supports.

DIVIDEND

A special dividend of HK3.48 cents per Share was paid to the Shareholders on 1 September 2014 pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at an extraordinary general meeting on 29 August 2014. The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Shi Baodong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel Related and Other Services

Our travel related and other services segment mainly comprises the
Corporate Travel Business and the Wholesale Travel Business. It
recorded 36.3% decrease in revenue to HK$72.99 million and 55.4%
decrease in operating profit to HK$16.24 million for the year ended

31 December 2014 as compared to the figure for the year ended 31

December 2013. - I

The decrease in revenue by HK$41.53 million as compared to

the year ended 31 December 2013 is mainly attributable to the Disposal which completed on 4 September 2014. For the year ended 31
December 2014, the Group recorded the revenue and profit of the Corporate Travel Business for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 and the revenue and profit of the Wholesale Travel Business for the period from 1 January 2014 to the date of completion
of the Disposal.

The relatively weak global economic environment, with fiscal tightening by the Central People’s Government of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"), corporate clients reducing their travel costs and remaining cautious in their business travel spendings, and political events

unfolding in Thailand, one of the most popular tourist destinations for Hong Kong people, have affected the travel industry negatively.

Trading and Retail of Jewellery

Our trading and retail of jewellery segment includes the distribution and sale of jewellery
products such as precious stones, jade, gold and silver in our flagship store and counters
of large department stores in Nanjing. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
revenue recorded a drop, since the high demand for gold products driven by the slide of
the international gold price in the year of 2013 was not sustained in 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the segment recorded 39.9% decrease in revenue
to HK$51.68 million (2013: HK$86.04 million) and the segment result was HK$1.99
million (2013: HK$2.06 million). The revenue decreased by HK$34.36 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2013. The
drop in revenue in 2014 was partially compensated by the enhancement in gross profit
margin. As such, our trading and retail of jewellery segment recorded a slight drop in

business performance for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

1.

Operating Performance

On 4 September 2014, completion of the Disposal (as defined in the Company’s circular dated 12 August 2014 (the “Circular”))

took place and the Disposal Group (as defined in the Circular), which was engaged in, among other things, the sale of air tickets

and other travel-related services principally provided to travel agents (the “Wholesale Travel Business”), ceased to be subsidiaries

of the Company. Therefore, the Group only recorded the revenue and profit of the Disposal Group for the period from 1 January
2014 to the date of completion of the Disposal. The Group recorded revenue of HK$124.67 million and profit attributable to

owners of the Company was HK$1.03 million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing a decrease by 37.8% and 95.3%

respectively as compared to 2013.

The substantial decrease in profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 was mainly attributable to:

(i)

(v)

the disposal loss and fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the amount of approximately
HK$7.84 million and HK$3.22 million, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2014 as opposed to the fair value
gain in the amount of approximately HK$11.32 million for the year ended 31 December 2013;

the non-recurring expenses of professional fees of approximately HK$2.5 million in total relating to the transactions as

disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 12 August 2014 and announcement dated 7 December 2014 respectively;

the non-recurring legal expenses incurred by the Disposal Group, which ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company with
effect from completion of the disposal thereof on 4 September 2014, in respect of a series of litigations against Sinosoft
Technology Group Limited and other parties as more particularly set out in the Company’s announcements dated 20 June
2013, 26 June 2013, 24 July 2013, 30 July 2013, 20 August 2013, 2 September 2013, 3 December 2013 and 12 May 2014,

respectively;
a decrease in the revenue and profit from the Corporate Travel Business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2013 due to the relatively weak global economic environment;

and

the above were partly set off by the gain on disposal of the Disposal Group at about HK$22.76 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2. Asset Quality

Our assets mainly include cash and bank balances, available-for-sale financial assets, trade receivables, inventories and financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The balance of cash and bank balances is HK$56.94 million, of which HK$1.49 million were denominated in RMB.

Available-for-sale financial assets represent approximately 64,128,416 shares of South China (China) Limited (“SCC”) (stock code:
413) held by the Group.

The balances of trade receivables of HK$29.09 million are due from Four Seas Tours Limited's corporate customers, which are
mostly well-known and larger enterprises. The ageing of HK$25.84 million, which represents about 83.8% of total trade receivables,
is within 90 days.

The balance of inventories is HK$28.03 million, of which it is all belong to the raw materials and finished goods of jewellery
products. Out of HK$11.26 million were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loan.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss refer to 87,081,856 shares of South China Land Limited (‘SCL") (stock code:
8155) held by the Group. The share price of SCL as at the year end date is HK$0.135 per share. The fair values loss of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is approximately HK$3.22 million during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3. Liability Structure

Our liabilities mainly include trade payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The balances of trade payables
amount to HK$34.89 million. The ageing of HK$34.76 million, which represents 99.6% of total trade payables, is within 90 days.
The balances of bank and other borrowings are HK$15.59 million, among which HK$7.56 million are bank borrowings and the

remaining HK$8.03 million are other borrowings.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s operations and investments continued to be mainly financed by internal resources
and bank and other borrowings. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalent amounted to approximately HK$56.94
million (2013: HK$37.48 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’ interest-bearing bank borrowings were approximately HK$7.56 million (2013: HK$29.02 million),
all of which were denominated in RMB. The bank borrowings were secured and the range of effective interest rate on bank borrowings for
the year ended 31 December 2014 was 6.4%-7.2% per annum (2013: 2.2%-7.2% per annum).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s other borrowings were approximately HK$8.03 million (2013: HK$8.40 million), all of which were
denominated in RMB. The other borrowings were unsecured and the interest rate on other borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2014 was 7% per annum (2013: 7%).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a current ratio of 2.32 (2013: 1.76). The net debt to total assets ratio was not applicable as the
Group was in net cash position for both 2013 and 2014.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATES

Reference is made to the Circular. On 30 April 2014, the Company entered into a disposal agreement (as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 24 June 2014) with Tremendous Success Holdings Limited (“Tremendous Success”), which was wholly owned by Mr.
Ng Hung Sang, a former Director and substantial Shareholder, for the disposal of the entire issued share capital of South China (BVI)
Limited (“South China BVI"). Mr. Ng ceased to be a Director on 3 October 2014.

Under this arrangement, Tremendous Success became the owner of the Disposal Group (including, among other interests, the entire
issued share capital of Hong Kong Four Seas Tours Limited which was engaged in the Wholesale Travel Business, 35% of the issued share
capital of Four Seas Tours Limited and 15% of the issued share capital of King Link Investments Limited). Completion of the Disposal took
place on 4 September 2014, and the Disposal Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGES OF ASSETS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, a significant portion of the borrowings was for normal trading purposes with the level of borrowings depending

on the level of trading activities. Certain of the inventories and other receivable of the Group are pledged to secure the banking facilities.

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities and pledges of assets are set out in notes 35 and 36 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENTS

The Group held some remaining shares and warrants of SCC after distribution in specie of SCC shares to the Shareholders in June 2009.
In July 2009, the Group exercised the warrants of SCC held which were then converted to SCC shares. In August 2009, SCC paid a special
dividend for its entire interest in SCL to its shareholders by means of distribution in specie. During the year, the Group recognized a
disposal loss and fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the amount of approximately HK$7.84 million and
HK$3.22 million respectively for SCL shares in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and shares of SCC recorded a fair value gain

of HK$ 6.42 million on available-for-sales financial assets in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of employees of the Group was 139 (2013: 352). The employees are remunerated based on

their work performance, professional experience and prevailing industry practices.

In addition to salary, other fringe benefits such as provident fund are offered to all employees of the Group. Performance of the employees
is normally reviewed on an annual basis with adjustment compatible to the market. Individual employees may also receive a discretionary
bonus at the end of each year based on performance. Employees may also be granted share options under the share option schemes

adopted by the Company. Details of the share option schemes are set out in note 32 to the financial statement.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

MR. SHI BAODONG  Chairman and Executive Director

Aged 46, Mr. Shi is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Shi graduated from the Hebei
University of Architecture in 1989. He has over 15 years of experience in property development and he is a qualified engineer in the PRC.
M. Shi is the director of Orient Victory Group HK Holdings Limited ( REBEEERBERBRRAF]) and the founder, shareholder
and chairman of Shijiazhuang Orient Victory Investment Group Limited* (£ KHEMRBEREEBEBR A F]), which is principally
engaged in property development, including the development of residential properties, commercial properties, properties and ancillary

facilities for the elderly, as well as an ecological park and a culture park in the PRC.

Mr. Shi is the vice chairman of the China Real Estate Industry Association and a consultant of its Special Committee for China Urban
Development, Special Committee for Elderly Residential Area and Special Committee for China Small Town Development. Mr. Shi is the
standing vice president of Hebei Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and the director of its Ecological Industry Committee. At the same
time, he is the vice president of Shijiazhuang General Chamber of Commerce and a member of the 11th Hebei Committee of the Chinese

People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. Shi is the sole director and sole beneficial owner of Orient Victory Real Estate, which holds 1,331,163,004 Shares, representing
approximately 73% of the total issued capital of the Company.

MR. WANG JIANHUA  Executive Director
Aged 51, Mr. Wang holds a master’s degree in business administration from the Pacific States University and is a qualified accountant in the
PRC. He is currently a vice president in Shijiagzhuang Orient Victory Investment Group Limited* (AR M REBIRE LB HR D

A]) and has substantial working experience in the finance and investment field in the PRC.

MS. XU YONGMEI  Executive Director

Aged 42, Ms. Xu graduated from the Hebei Radio and TV University, majoring in financial accounting, in 1996. She completed a course
in private equity investment and listed companies advanced research in the School of Continuing Education of Peking University in 2012.
Ms. Xu is a qualified accountant in the PRC. She is currently a vice president in Shijiazhuang Orient Victory Investment Group Limited*
(AREMRBIRESE AR QF]). She also has substantial working experience as finance manager and financial controller in the
property development industry.

MR.ZHOU JIANGYONG  Non-executive Director (resigned on 18 February 2015)

Aged 42, Mr. Zhou was also a member of audit committee of the Company (the ‘Audit Committee”). Mr. Zhou holds a master’s degree in
communications from the Communication University of China. He is currently a vice president in Shijiazhuang Orient Victory Investment
Group Limited* (BERAMRBIRESB AR T]). Prior to that, Mr. Zhou was the chief market operations officer of Tianli
(Beijing) Industrial Company Limited* (RAGER)EZEBR A F]). He also works as the general sales manager (cultural tourism
investment) of China Wanda Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. LI YANKUAN  Non-executive Director (appointed on 18 February 2015)

Aged 41, Mr. Li is also a member of Audit Committee. Mr. Li graduated from the Civil Engineering Department of Hebei Engineering
and Technical College in 1996, majoring in Building Decoration Engineering. He received his Intermediate Professional Title in 2007. Mr.
Li served in different positions in Shijiazhuang Orient Victory Investment Group Limited* (£ REMRBIRESEGRARF),
including cost control manager, deputy general manager of its project company, general manager of its subsidiary and vice president. He has
enormous theoretical knowledge of and practical experience in real estate operation and management, and is an expert in the field of cost

control, project management, planning and design, etc. He is currently an executive president of Shijiazhuang Orient Victory Investment

Group Limited* (AR it M R B E LB BRAR]).

MR. DONG XIAOJIE  Independent non-executive Director
Aged 52, Mr. Dong is also the chairman of Remuneration Committee. Mr. Dong graduated from the Hebei Normal University, majoring in

mathematics in 1984. He is currently a director of Shengyuan Investment Risk Consulting Management Co,, Limited.

MR. HE QI  Independent non-executive Director

Aged 59, Mr. He is also a member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. He has been an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Land Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 978), since 2013. He has also been an independent non-executive director of Evergrande Real Estate Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3333), since 2009. Mr. He has been the deputy secretary of the China Real

Estate Association since 2006.

MR. LAW WANG CHAK, WALTERY  Independent non-executive Director

Aged 51, Mr. Law is also the chairman of Audit Committee, and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Law had been the chief financial officer and non-executive director of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2689), from June 2004 to October 2008 and from August 2008 to October 2008,
respectively. Mr. Law also served in different key roles such as chief financial officer and vice president of the financial department in
four other Hong Kong listed companies for over the past 12 years. Prior to that, Mr. Law had worked in the audit division of Coopers &
Lybrand, now PricewaterhouseCoopers, for more than S years. Mr. Law is a fellow member of both the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Law is also an associated member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Law has over 27 years of experience in financial audit, financial due
diligence reviews, merger and acquisitions, corporate restructuring, accounting and corporate financing. Mr. Law graduated from the
London School of Economics and Political Science, the University of London with a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1991 and a master’s

degree in financial economics in 1995.

* denotes an English translation of the Chinese name for identification purpose only.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR.WONG CHIKIN  Chief Financial Officer

Aged 41, Mr. Wong was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company in October 2014. He has about 19 years of banking,
corporate finance and accounting experience with leading international banks and companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in Finance from the City University of Hong Kong, a
Master’s degree in Practicing Accounting from Monash University, Australia and awarded an Executive MBA degree offered by The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an

associate member of CPA Australia.

Prior to joining the Group in October 2014, Mr. Wong worked for a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange as the Chief
Financial Officer. Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (“Tsui Wah”) on §
November 2012. Tsui Wah was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 26 November 2012.

MS. HO LAI KUEN  Senior Finance Manager

Ms. Ho was appointed as Senior Finance Manager in December 2014 and she has over 15 years of auditing and accounting experience
with the international audit firm and companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Ho holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business from Monash University of Australia and a master’s degree in Accounting from R EIERAE B 48 K2 PRC. Ms. Ho is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The

Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board has pleasure in presenting the Report of the Directors and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 9 October 2014 and approved by the
Registrars of Companies of Hong Kong, the name of the Company was changed from South China Holdings Limited to Orient Victory
China Holdings Limited and the Company has adopted the Chinese name “ER AR B B BR A B)” as its dual foreign name.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company was an investment holding company and its subsidiaries were principally

engaged in the sale of air-tickets, other travel related and services, trading and retailing of jewellery products, and other investment holding,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 80 to 202 of this
Annual Report.

A special dividend of HK3.48 cents per Share was paid to the Shareholders on 1 September 2014 pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at an extraordinary general meeting on 29 August 2014. The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted

from the audited financial statements and restated /reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 203 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment properties of the Group during the year ended 31 December

2014 are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no change in either authorised capital or issued capital of the Company during the year. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
all the outstanding share options of the Company have been cancelled. Details of share capital and share options of the Company are set

out in notes 31 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) or the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated,

which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the note 33 and

on page 85 in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company did not have any reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as at 31 December 2014, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) Cayman Islands (as at 31 December 2013:
HK$98,284,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the purchase from the Groupss five largest suppliers accounted for 44.2% of the total purchases
and purchase from the largest supplier included therein accounted for 16.5% of the total purchases. The revenue of the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 4.4% of the total revenue and the revenue of the largest customer included therein accounted for 1.4% of the total

revenue.

None of our Directors or any of their respective close associates or, so far as our Directors were aware, any Shareholder who owned 5% or
more of our issued share capital as at 31 December 2014, had any interest in any of our five largest suppliers or our five largest customers in
2013 and 2014.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Jianhua

Ms. Xu Yongmei

Mr. Ng Hung Sang (Chairman until and resigned on 3 October 2014)
Mr. Richard Howard Gorges (resigned on 3 October 2014)

Ms. Cheung Choi Ngor (resigned on 3 October 2014)

Mr. Ng Yuk Fung Peter (resigned on 3 October 2014)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Li Yankuan (appointed on 18 February 2015)

Mr. Zhou Jiangyong (resigned on 18 February 2015)

Ms. Ng Yuk Mui Jessica (resigned on 3 October 2014)

Mr. David Michael Norman (resigned on 3 October 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Dong Xiaojie

Mr. He Qi

Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery

Mr. David John Blackett (resigned on 3 October 2014)

Ms. Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth (resigned on 3 October 2014)
Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (resigned on 3 October 2014)

With effect from 10 September 2014 (the ‘Appointment Date”), the Board has appointed Mr. Shi Baodong, Mr. Wang Jianhua and Ms.
Xu Yongmei as executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Jiangyong as non-executive Director, and Mr. Dong Xiaojie, Mr. He Qi and Mr. Law Wang

Chak, Waltery as independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Shi has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)

effective from 3 October 2014. In addition, as recommended by the Nomination Committee, the Board appointed Mr. Li Yankuan to act

as a non-executive Director with effect from 18 February 2015, for replacing Mr. Zhou Jiangyong who resigned with effect from the same

date.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only

until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, all the Directors

shall hold office until the forthcoming general meeting of the Company and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming general meeting,

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 14 of this Annual Report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange from each of the independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent since the Appointment Date and as at the date of this report, the Company still considers the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF APPOINTMENTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company

which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report and the Composite Document issued by the Company and Orient Victory Real Estate dated 10
September 2014, there was no contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling Shareholder had a material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of transactions during the year between the Group and other companies in which Director has beneficial interest are set out in note

39 to the financial statements and the sections “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this Annual Report.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, no contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end 0f 2014 or at any time during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior

management and comparable market practices.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 respectively to the consolidated

financial statements in this Annual Report.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Shi Baodong, Mr. Wang Jianhua, Ms. Xu Yongmei and Mr. Zhou Jiangyong agreed to waive
Directors’ remuneration of HK$598,000, HK$191,000, HK$191,000 and HK$ 191,000, respectively .

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the

Listing Rules were as follows:

Approximate percentage

Name of Director Capacity Number and Shares held of shareholding
Shi Baodong Interest in a controlled 1,331,163,004 73%
corporation (Nofe 1) (Long Position)
Note:

1) Mr. Shi Baodong hold 100% equity interest in Orient Victory Real Estate Group Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 1,331,163,004 Shares in
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors and the Chief Executive had or was deemed to have any interest
or short position in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Directors, employees of the Group and participants as described under the relevant share option schemes of the Company are entitled
to participate in the share option schemes of the Company. Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company together with the
details of the share options granted were set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31 December
2014, no share option was granted or exercised, executed and all the outstanding share options of the Company have been cancelled in
April 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to

enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following persons (not being a Director or Chief Executive) had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate percentage

Name of Shareholder Capacity Number and Shares held of shareholding
Orient Victory Real Estate Group Beneficial Interest (Note 1) 1,331,163,004 73%
Holdings Limited
Note:
1) Mr. Shi, an executive Director, holds 100% equity interest in Orient Victory Real Estate Group Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not Directors nor Chief
Executive) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or any of their respective close associates had

engaged in or had any interest in any business which causes or may cause any competition with the business of the Group or any conflicts
with the interests of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Group during the year in the ordinary course of business are set out

in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Group had the following connected transactions and continuing connected transactions, details of which were

disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(s)

(6)

(7)

A disposal agreement dated 30 April 2014 (as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 24 June 2014) (“Disposal
Agreement”) entered into by the Company with Tremendous Success, which was wholly owned by Mr. NG (as defined below), for
the disposal of the entire issued share capital of South China (BVI) at a consideration of HK$95,466,000.

The assignment by the Company of, among others, any rights, benefits, liabilities, as the plaintiff in certain litigation cases to a
company or companies in which Mr. NG (as defined below) has an interest pursuant to a deed of assignment dated 4 September
2014 (“Deed of Assignment”) as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12 August 2014. The Deed of Assignment was
executed pursuant to the Disposal Agreement.

The Four Seas Shareholders’ Agreement dated 4 September 2014 was entered into among Sleek City Limited (“Sleek City”), Four
Seas Travel (BVI) Limited (“Four Seas (BVI)”) and Four Seas Tours Limited (“Four Seas”) to govern the shareholders’ interest in
Four Seas as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12 August 2014. Four Seas is held as to 65% and 35% by Sleek City
and Four Seas (BVI), respectively.

The King Link Shareholders” Agreement dated 4 September 2014 was entered into among Sleek City, Tek Lee Finance And
Investment Corporation Limited (“Tek Lee”) and King Link Investments Limited (“King Link”) to govern the shareholders’
interest in King Link as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12 August 2014. King Link is held as to 85% and 15% by
Sleek City and Tek Lee, respectively.

The Service Agreement dated 4 September 2014 was entered into among the Company, Four Seas and Hong Kong Four Seas
Tours Limited (“HK Four Seas”), pursuant to which HK Four Seas provides certain information technology, trade mark licensing,
back office support and air ticket purchase agency services to Four Seas for a monthly fee of HK$100,000 as disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 12 August 2014 at an annual cap of HK$400,000 in 2014.

The agency fee payable by Four Seas to HK Four Seas pursuant to terms stated in the Company’s circular dated 12 August 2014
had an annual cap of HK$1,920,000, does not include air tickets fees and is calculated on the basis of 1.5% mark-up on gross
purchases from HK Four Seas.

Rental payments to Glorious Dragon Investments Limited (“Glorious Dragon”) and First City Limited (“First City”) pursuant to
two rental agreements both dated 30 December 2013 at a total monthly rental fee of HK$255,600 in respect of: (i) 2/F, On Lok
Yuen Building, 25, 27 and 27A Des Voeux Road, Central, Hong Kong; and (ii) 1/F, On Lok Yuen Building, 25, 27 and 27A Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, respectively, both for a term of two years commencing on 1 January 2014.
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Sleek City is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Four Seas and King Link are the indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company.

Four Seas (BV1), HK Four Seas, Tek Lee, Glorious Dragon and First City are wholly-owned by Mr. NG Hung Sang (“Mr. NG”), a former
executive Director of the Company in the last 12 months, a connected person of the Company. Four Seas is held indirectly as to 35% by
Mr. NG and; this is his associate. King Link is held indirectly as to 15% by Mr. NG and this is his associate. Thus Four Seas (BVI), HK Four
Seas, Tek Lee, Glorious Dragon and First City are the connected persons of Four Seas, King Link and the Company.

Confirmations from the independent non-executive Directors and auditors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.S5 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected

transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014 and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company (the ‘Auditors”), were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 ‘Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under

the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group, and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have not exceeded the annual cap, in

accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions, made during

the year is disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee presently comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery (being the chairman of

the Audit Committee) and, Mr. He Qi and a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Li Yankuan.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion
that the preparation of such annual results complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate

disclosures were made.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the details of

the compliance are set out on page 30 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as in the
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 except that Mr. Ng Hung Sang, the former Chairman and
executive Director, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 10 June 2014 since he had other business
engagements, which deviated from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and enhance its

corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28

to 38 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules,
are held by the public at all times as of the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The 2014 annual general meeting is proposed to be held in June 2015. Details of the resolutions to be considered and approved and the

date of the annual general meeting will be set out in the notice of 2014 annual general meeting to be issued by the Company in due course.

On behalf of the Board

Shi Baodong

Chairman

Hong Kong
20 March 2015
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasize accountability and transparency to the Shareholders. Periodic review will be made to the corporate

governance practices to comply with the regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 except
that Mr. Ng Hung Sang, the former Chairman and executive Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company

held on 10 June 2014 since he had other business engagements, which deviated from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

As at 31 December 2014, the Board consisted of 7 Directors, including the Chairman, Mr. Shi Baodong, who is an executive Director, two
additional executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. Not less than one-third of
the Board is independent non-executive Directors. A list of Directors and their respective biographies are set out on pages 13 to 14 of this

Annual Report.

The Board composition is regularly reviewed to ensure that it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirement of the
business of the Group. A balanced composition of executive Directors and non-executive Directors is maintained to ensure independence
and effective management. The Company has satisfied the relevant provision of the Listing Rules in having at least one of the independent

non-executive Directors with appropriate professional qualiﬂcations or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The appointment of the Directors is recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved by the Board based on a formal written
procedure and policy for the appointment of new Director(s). When selecting potential candidates for Director(s), their skills, experience,

expertise, devotion of time and conflicts of interests are the key factors.

All the current non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years. All Directors
(including non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of

Association.

The Board is collectively responsible for the formulation of the Group’s strategy, overseeing the management of the business and affairs
of the Group. Daily operation and management of the business of the Group including, inter alia, the implementation of strategies are
delegated to the executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”), comprising all executive Directors. They report
periodically to the Board their work and business decisions. After the change of controlling Shareholder, Executive Committee was
abolished on 3 October 2014. The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group’s business
to the management of the relevant segments and divisions. The management is responsible for the implementation and adoption of the

Company'’s strategies and policies. The delegated functions and tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board.
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Every newly appointed Director is provided with an induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/he has
adequate understanding of the businesses and operations of the Group. The Directors are also kept informed on a timely basis of their
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules, as well as other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements. The Company also

encourages its Directors to participate in other continuous professional development programmes for directors.
All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda of regular meetings. With the assistance of
the executive Directors, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and have

received adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.

The Board held seven meetings in the year ended 31 December 2014:

Attendance (Number of

Meetings attended/
From 1 January 2014 to 3 October 2014 Eligible to attend)

Executive Directors

Ng Hung Sang (Chairman until and resigned on 3 October 2014) 2/4
Richard Howard Gorges (resigned on 3 October 2014) 3/4
Cheung Choi Ngor (resigned on 3 October 2014) 4/4
Ng Yuk Fung Peter (resigned on 3 October 2014) 2/4

Non-executive Directors
Ng Yuk Mui Jessica (resigned on 3 October 2014) 3/4
David Michael Norman (resigned on 3 October 2014) 2/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

David John Blackett (resigned on 3 October 2014) 2/4
Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth (resigned on 3 October 2014) 3/4
Cheng Hong Kei (resigned on 3 October 2014) 3/4
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Attendance (Number of

Meetings attended/
From 10 September 2014 to 31 December 2014 Eligible to attend)

Executive Directors

Shi Baodong (appointed on 10 September 2014 and Chairman from 3 October 2014) 4/4
Wang Jianhua (appointed on 10 September 2014) 4/4
Xu Yongmei (appointed on 10 September 2014) 4/4

Non-executive Directors
Zhou Jiangyong (appointed on 10 September 2014 and resigned on 18 February 2015) 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dong Xiaojie (appointed on 10 September 2014) 4/4
He Qi (appointed on 10 September 2014) 4/4
Law Wang Chak, Waltery (appointed on 10 September 2014) 4/4

Notices of at least fourteen days are given to the Directors for regular meetings, while relevant documents are sent to the Directors not less
than three days before the intended date of a board or board committee meeting. With respect to other meetings, the Directors are given
as much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Articles of Association. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) ensures that the procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are complied with. Minutes of board meetings and
meetings of board committees are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for inspection at any time on reasonable notice by any

Director.

The Directors have full access to information on the Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever they deem
necessary. Memorandums are issued to the Directors from time to time to update them with legal and regulatory changes and matters of

relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors (the
“Code”).

Specific enquiries have been made with all the Directors, who have confirmed that they complied with the required standards set out in the
Code during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound and effective internal control system of the Group and has established the Group’s

internal control policies and procedures for monitoring the internal control system.

Recognizing that a well-designed and effective system of internal control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the Company and the
Shareholders” investment and to ensure the reliability of financial reporting as well as compliance with the relevant requirement of the
Listing Rules, a team, comprising qualified accountants and management, has been organized to carry out the internal audit function of the
Company (the “TA Team”).

Based on the assessment of risk exposure, the IA Team formulates audit plans periodically and ensures the audit programs cover key
internal control areas of key operating subsidiaries on a rotational basis for the review by the Audit Committee at regular intervals. The

scopes and timing of audit review is usually determined according to risk assessment.

Special reviews may also be performed on areas of concern identified by management or the Audit Committee from time to time.

Communication channel has been established between the IA Team and the members of Audit Committee.

The IA Team monitors the internal control procedures and systems of the Group, reports findings and makes recommendations, if any, to
the Audit Committee at a regular interval. During the year, the internal control of purchase and payment cycle of travel related services and
sales and receivables collection cycle of other services included in travel related and other services segment, inventory control and costing
cycle of trading and retailing of jewellery of the Group were reviewed and addressed in the internal control report which was presented by

the IA Team to the Audit Committee and the Board for review.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the preparation of the

financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent

Auditors’ Report on pages 77 to 79 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid or to be payable to the Auditors was:

Fee paid/payable
Services rendered HK$’000
Audit services 820
Non-audit services* 30
Total 850

* such services included the issuance of a letter for the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Following the resignation of Ms. To Suen Fan as the Company Secretary, Mr. Ip Pui Sum was appointed as the Company Secretary with
effect from 3 October 2014. Mr. Ip Pui Sum is an external service provider to the Company and a CPA practicing in Hong Kong. He has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required by the Listing Rules 3.29. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the
Company is Mr. Wong Chi Kin, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

The Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly appointed Director receives an induction package covering

the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company.
Apart from updates on regulatory changes and governance developments provided by the Company, the Directors are encouraged to
participate in professional trainings and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. A training record has been devised to

record the training the Directors have undertaken.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors participated in the following trainings:

Category of

Continuous
Professional
From 1 January 2014 to 3 October 2014 Development

Executive Directors

Ng Hung Sang (Chairman until and resigned on 3 October 2014) A
Richard Howard Gorges (resigned on 3 October 2014) A
Cheung Choi Ngor (resigned on 3 October 2014) A
Ng Yuk Fung Peter (resigned on 3 October 2014) A
Non-executive Directors

Ng Yuk Mui Jessica (resigned on 3 October 2014) A
David Michael Norman (resigned on 3 October 2014) A
Independent Non-executive Directors

David John Blackett (resigned on 3 October 2014) A
Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth (resigned on 3 October 2014) A

Cheng Hong Kei (resigned on 3 October 2014) A
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Category of

Continuous
Professional
From 10 September 2014 to 31 December 2014 Development

Executive Directors

Shi Baodong (appointed on 10 September 2014 and Chairman from 3 October 2014) B
Wang Jianhua (appointed on 10 September 2014) B
Xu Yongmei (appointed on 10 September 2014) B

Non-executive Directors

Zhou Jiangyong (appointed on 10 September 2014 and resigned on 18 February 2015) B

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dong Xiaojie (appointed on 10 September 2014) B
He Qi (appointed on 10 September 2014) B
Law Wang Chak, Waltery (appointed on 10 September 2014) B
Notes:
A: Reading seminar materials and other updated information regarding the later development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulations
B: Attending briefing and/or seminar

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the period from 1 January 2014 to 3 October 2014, the Audit Committee consisted of all the independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. David John Blackett and Mrs. Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth and one

non-executive Director, Mr. David Michael Norman.

For the period from 3 October 2014 to 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,

namely Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery (Chairman of the Audit Committee) and Mr. He Qi and one non-executive Director, Mr. Zhou
Jiangyong.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee, in accordance with its terms of reference, which are substantially the same as those under the
CG Code, include the review of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures, review of financial information of

the Group, review of half-yearly and annual results of the Group and review of the relationship with the Auditors.

The Audit Committee has also been delegated by the Board to be responsible for performing the corporate governance duties under
the CG Code, include develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board, review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code.
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The Audit Committee had held three meetings for the year ended 31 December 2014 in which representatives of the management were
present to review the interim and final results, the interim report and annual report and other financial, internal control and corporate

governance matters. The Auditors were present in two of the meetings.

Attendance (Number of

Meetings attended/

From 1 January 2014 to 3 October 2014 Eligible to attend)
Cheng Hong Kei (Chairman until and resigned on 3 October 2014) 2/2
David John Blackett (resigned on 3 October 2014) 2/2
Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth (resigned on 3 October 2014) 2/2
David Michael Norman (resigned on 3 October 2014) 1/2

Attendance (Number of

Meetings attended/

From 3 October 2014 to 31 December 2014 Eligible to attend)
Law Wang Chak, Waltery (Chairman appointed on 3 October 2014) 1/1
Zhou Jiangyong (appointed on 3 October 2014) 1/1
He Qi (appointed on 3 October 2014) 1/1

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014, the internal control system and the

corporate governance pOliCy.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE (until 3 October
2014)

The remuneration and nomination committee (before its abolishment on 3 October 2014) of the Company (the “Remuneration and
Nomination Committee”) performed both the remuneration and the nomination functions under the CG Code. It consisted of all the then
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mrs. Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth (the then Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination

Committee), Mr. David John Blackett and Mr. Cheng Hong Kei and one then non-executive Director, Mr. David Michael Norman.

The principal duties of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, in accordance with its terms of reference, which were substantially
the same as those under the CG Code, included review on the structure and composition of the Board, identification of suitably qualified
Board candidates, and review of the remuneration of Directors and senior management and making recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting in the period ended 3 October 2014.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviewed the policies for the remuneration of executive Directors, including basic
salaries, discretionary performance bonus and other emoluments, based on skills, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
performance of the individual executive Director with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as industry
practice. The Directors’ fees for all Directors were subject to Shareholders” approval at general meeting. Reimbursement was allowed
for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their duties including attendance at board meetings and

committee meetings.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, adopted a formal written
procedure and policy for the appointment of new Directors, assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors and made

recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (from 3 October 2014)

The Remuneration Committee (established on 3 October 2014) performs the remuneration function under the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee consists of an executive Director, namely Mr. Shi Baodong, and two independent non-executive Directors,

namely Mr. Dong Xiaojie (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee, in accordance with its terms of reference, which are substantially the same as those
under the CG Code, include determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assessing performance of executive
Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts, and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee met once in the year ended 31 December 2014 and the attendance record is set out below:

Attendance (Number of

Meetings attended/

Remuneration Committee Eligible to attend)
Dong Xiaojie (Chairman appointed on 3 October 2014) 1/1
Shi Baodong (appointed on 3 October 2014) 1/1
Law Wang Chak, Waltery (appointed on 3 October 2014) 1/1

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the policies for the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management, including basic
salaries, discretionary performance bonus and other emoluments, based on skills, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
performance of the individual executive Director and senior management with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,

as well as industry practice. Directors’ fees for all Directors are subject to Shareholders” approval at general meeting.

Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their duties including attendance at

board meetings and committee meetings.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (from 3 October 2014)

The Nomination Committee (established on 3 October 2014) performs the nomination function under the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of an executive Director, namely Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), and two independent

non-executive Directors, namely Mr. He Qi and Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, in accordance with its terms of reference, which are substantially the same as those
under the CG Code, include review on the structure and composition of the Board, identification of suitably qualified Board candidates,

and determining the policy for the nomination of Directors.
The Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting in the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, adopted a formal written procedure and policy for
the appointment of new Directors, assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors and made recommendations to the

Board on the appointment and re-appointment of the Directors.

Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their duties including attendance at

board meetings and committee meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no changes in any of the Company’s constitutional documents other than the
change of the Company’s name from “South China Holdings Limited” to “Orient Victory China Holdings Limited” and the Company has
adopted the Chinese name R BRI ER AR asits dual foreign name with effect from 9 October 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Information is communicated to the Shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate communications (such as interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars), annual general meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on the website of the

Company.

Interim reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to the Shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the website of the

Company. The Company’s website provides the Shareholders with the corporate information of the Group.

The Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company to enable them to make enquiries with respect to the Company's
affairs. The Shareholders can also send their enquiries to the Company through these channels or contact Union Registrars Limited, the

branch share registrar of the Company, in case of enquiries about shareholdings.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s registered office in Hong Kong
at 2603, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also send such enquiries and concerns to

ovchina@sjzdsjt.com, an email specifically set up by the Company for investor communications.

Annual general meeting of the Company (‘AGMs”) allows the Directors to meet and communicate with the Shareholders. The Company
ensures that the Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions for each
issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee and the then Remuneration and Nomination Committees and the external
Auditor also attend the AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that
the Company follows good corporate governance practices. Notice of AGM are distributed to all Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days prior to the AGM. The accompanying circular sets out the details of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as

required under the Listing Rules. Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the day of the AGM.

The Articles of Association set out the procedures for the Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution
at general meetings and propose a person for election as a Director are available at the Company’s corporate website

http://www.orientvictorychina.com.hk.

Extraordinary general meetings of the Company shall be convened on the requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognized clearing
house (or its nominee) or any two or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 3 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may convene such meeting, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as

aresult of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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The attendance record of the Directors at the AGM held on 10 June 2014 and extraordinary general meetings held on 29 August 2014 and
9 October 2014 respectively is set out below:

AGM EGM
(Number of (Number of
Meetings Meetings

attended/ attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
From 1 January 2014 to 3 October 2014 attend) attend)

Executive Directors

Ng Hung Sang (Chairman until and resigned on 3 October 201 4) 0/1 0/1
Richard Howard Gorges (resigned on 3 October 2014) 1/1 1/1
Cheung Choi Ngor (resigned on 3 October 2014) 1/1 1/1
Ng Yuk Fung Peter (resigned on 3 October 2014 0/1 0/1

Non-executive Directors
Ng Yuk Mui Jessica (resigned on 3 October 2014) 0/1 0/1
David Michael Norman (resigned on 3 October 2014 0/1 0/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

David John Blackett (resigned on 3 October 2014) 0/1 0/1
Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth (resigned on 3 October 2014) 1/1 1/1
Cheng Hong Kei (resigned on 3 October 2014 1/1 1/1

AGM EGM
(Number of (Number of
Meetings Meetings

attended/ attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
From 10 September 2014 to 31 December 2014 attend) attend)

Executive Directors

Shi Baodong (appointed on 10 September 2014 and Chairman from 3 October 2014) 0/0 0/1
Wang Jianhua (appointed on 10 September 2014) 0/0 1/1
Xu Yongmei (appointed on 10 September 2014) 0/0 0/1

Non-executive Directors
Zhou Jiangyong (appointed on 10 September 2014 and resigned on 18 February 2015) 0/0 0/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dong Xiaojie (appointed on 10 September 2014) 0/0 0/1
He Qi (appointed on 10 September 2014) 0/0 0/1
Law Wang Chak, Waltery (appointed on 10 September 2014 0/0 0/1
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David Michael Norman (7R =ZF —/9F + H = H5¢1F) 0/1 0/1
BIUFHTES
David John Blackett (7 =& — /04 + A = HEFFF) 0/1 0/1
WE N (RZFE—F+H=HEFT) 1/1 1/1
BIERE (R =F—F -+ H=HEIT) 1/1 1/1

BRREFRE RREBAE
(HEER (HEE=R

KRB RE
—E-NEARA+BRE=-E-—WE+=-A=1+—8H CERHE) ABERLERE)
HITESE
ARR (R-FE—WFENF+HEZT -

PR —E—FE+A=HEEZTLE) 0/0 0/1
TEE (R -_ZE—WFENA+HEZT) 0/0 1/1
kg (R-F—WFENA+HEZF) 0/0 0/1
EHITES
BIB (R-F—WFEANA+HEZTIRR -E—FHF - A+/HEHT) 0/0 0/1
BAEHITES
IR (R-ZF—WFENA+HEZT) 0/0 0/1
a3 (R-FE—WFENA+HEZE) 0/0 0/1

BRE (R _F—MFNLA+HAEZET) 0/0 0/1



Annual Report 2014 ZE-MWEER 77

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

EY=x

To the shareholders of Orient Victory China Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orient
Victory China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 202, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

W o7 A% B A

B Orient Victory China Holdings Limited R i F &
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Silfz B 3R

P2 FZ 808 £2028 FT H Orient Victory China
Holdings Limited R 5P BIZRR AR A8 ([EAF])
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AR FEGETBEREE L H AR EF -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
B or 1% B e

To the shareholders of Orient Victory China Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

B Orient Victory China Holdings Limited 3R & #
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To the shareholders of Orient Victory China Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

20 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

TR

Yearended 31 December 2014 #HE_—_Z—NE+-_A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—2-mE —m-=f
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FEx F#ET
REVENUE WA 5 124,668 200,556
Cost of sales SHER AN (41,521) (77,110)
Gross profit EF 83,147 123,446
Other income EHbUg A S 2,807 6,462
Fair value gain on investment properties B E N EIE 6 - 300
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at BRATELBERARZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEATE
(B18), Mz 6 (3,222) 11,323
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair HERL N FELER
value through profit or loss ANRZ eRIEEZEE 6 (7,840) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR Z ks 6 22,760 -
Selling and distribution expenses SHE DA (7,103) (7,509)
Administrative expenses TEREBR (82,036) (100,055)
Other operating expenses Hih &5 (1,249) (1,444)
Finance costs B8 A 7 (3,936) (5117)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE BT 6 3,328 27,406
Income tax expense FrERiF X 10 (2,786) (5,533)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A BT 542 21,873
Attributable to: FE(ETT -
Owners of the Company NATIEA A 11 1,029 21,812
Non-controlling interests JEIE R RE RS (487) 61
542 21,873
EARNINGS PER SHARE RATEE AEL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS SRER
OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted HAN#E HKO0.06 cent HK1.2 cent
0.06 781l 12784

Details of dividend paid during the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

FAENBREFBERYBERRMFE T RKE °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R R E S

Yearended 31 December2014 EHE_—ZE—FE+_-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—EF-mE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEER 542 21,873
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit2W (1) W
(LOSS)/INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income KRR HER GEEF D ES
to be reclassified to profit or loss in BEEMtem|
subsequent periods: (E518),/ Wzs -
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AtHEEMEEZ ATE 17
financial assets Ly 6,416 3,847
Release of available for sale financial HENBARBAHEBE
asset revaluation reserve upon TREEEHRFERR
disposal of subsidiaries (4,998) -
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon  HEHIE A F1FFE K )F 5) 34
disposal of subsidiaries [ RERR (8,631) -
Exchange differences on translation of MEIRINETE 2 PEH E58 34
foreign operations (809) 2,577
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEFEHMEE (FE),
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR U % (8,022) 6,424
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TEERE (BE)KE
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR g (7,480) 28297
Attributable to: 1T -
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE PN (6,686) 27,470
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 (794) 827
(7,480) 28,297
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A% B B IR UL R

31 December2014 —ZE—WNF+—-HA=+—H

Notes

P &

2014
—EF-mF

HKS$’000
FEx

2013
—ZE—=4F
HKS$'000
FHET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - R R 14 452 8,015
Investment properties "EME 1S - 38,900
Available-for-sale financial assets MHHESHEE 17 54,509 48,566
Other non-current assets HMIEmE&EE 18 - 29,150
Goodwill RS 19 - 2,994
Total non-current assets EREBEELE 54,961 127,625
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 78 20 28,026 31,970
Trade receivables FEIWWE S8R 21 29,089 181,749
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT FRIE -
Re REAM UK 22 5,215 49,666

Financial assets at fair value through BAFHELER AR

profit or loss SRVEE 23 11,756 40916
Advances to non-controlling shareholders BN ENGE 2l S E N

of subsidiaries 24 = 1,878
Tax recoverable EREN N - 146
Pledged bank deposits B ITER 2§ - 3,250
Cash and bank balances 04 NIEITES 25 56,935 34,229
Total current assets TEEEMLE 131,021 343,804
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FERE SRR 26 34,889 94,987
Other payables and accruals HibEN T R EAER 27 5,564 60,585
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings M ERITREMER 28 15,594 37,419
Tax payable JE IR 456 1,997
Total current liabilities mEAaEesE 56,503 194,988
NET CURRENT ASSETS e EFE 74,518 148,816
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBAEMS

CURRENT LIABILITIES 129,479 276,441
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B B IR D AR

31 December2014 —ZE—MF+_-_A=+—H

2014 2013
—ZE—-F —FT—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ibg=2 FHET FHT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Advances from shareholders f& B AR 29 - 62,438
NET ASSETS BEFE 129,479 214,003
EQUITY IR A< RE
Equity attributable to owners RATEBAELER
of the Company
Issued Capital BEBITIRA 31 45,584 45,584
Reserves #E 33(a) 76,765 146,905
122,349 192,489
Non-controlling interests JEEE R RER 7,130 21,514
TOTAL EQUITY AR RE 129,479 214,003
Shi Baodong Wang Jianhua
ARER T
Chairman Director

E EF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LRSI

31 December2014 —ZE—MFE+=-HF=+—H

2014
—E—mE =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B NEE 14 28 -
Interests in subsidiaries S IEVNCIPA 2 16 = 148,212
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 28 148,212
CURRENT ASSETS nREBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENEIE - Re &
E A R IR 22 2,660 -
Due from subsidiaries JEUS BT B A B FRIE 16 4 -
Bank balances RI1THE R 25 48,229 S
Total current assets B EAE 50,893 S
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HiENRMETER 27 868 61
Due to subsidiaries JERTHTE A R F0E 16 22,610 -
Total current liabilities B R ERRE 23,478 61
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) HiE&E (&f&) $HE 27,415 (56)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBHERE
LIABILITIES 27,443 148,156
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEE
Due to subsidiaries N EPNGIE ] 16 = 219
NET ASSETS BEEEE 27,443 147,937
EQUITY IR 2 FE 8
Issued capital BT 31 45,584 45,584
Reserves EE 33(b) (18,141) 102,353
TOTAL EQUITY IR At e 1B ME 27,443 147937
Shi Baodong Wang Jianhua
AR FEE
Chairman Director
4 £F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—R=

—
=
=

BE

Year ended 31 December 2014

o (ALZLO00S06'9FT « 2
=—&=) LGO009LLY Y S T EUNG S HAHEHYET W

EWHEE USRS E B BT WM -
S b o TTRL%0SCE Y B 2

I
(RS E WEHN\HE\NE

w\ﬁi

%@wu%

‘uonisod [eraueul Jo JUIWARE)S PAFEPIOSUOD Y UL (000'SO6'OF T$INH €107)
000'S9L9L$H JO S9AI9S31 PAJLPI[OSUOD Y} 3s1IdW0d $JUN0IIE aAI9SAT 3SY ],

“UOHRIDOSSE JO ST 1R}
YIm dueprodde ur satueduwod 33} JO SI0IIAIP JO SpILOq Y JO [eaoxdde o
0] 129[qns St I9jsULI) JO JUNOWE Y| ], "I[EINGLISIP-UOU ST IAIISAI £10INJEIS DN (]

ay [, Teades paransi3ar oty JO 95(S SAYILAT IAIISAIT A} [IIUN DATISAT A10INIEIS S)1
01 xe) 1oye Jyjoxd 531 jo 1red 19psuen 03 parmbar st eUIYD) puURIUIR UI SILIRIPISNS

B s H S (0 W 2 TOUE Y E b EEY - [ME Y E wﬁ %Mw # sdnorn aty jo yoea ‘eury)) puepurely ur suone[nSaI YIIM 9OUBPIOIIE U] #
6LY'6TT  OET'L 6YETTT 8T SEFT +€89 LIV'SE * +L68'8€ ¥88'sy H—4+=HTlsW-&"H 107 Rquad(q 1€y
(bSt'e9) - (bSt'e9)  (#St'e9) - = = = = = u puapiaip [eadg
- - - 6907 - - - (690') - - )z suondo areys o uoneEIE)
- - - 6IS'ST - - - - (618'T) - winwaid areys jo uonanpay
(06s‘cT)  (06S‘c1) = LI = (8L1) = - - = 6 saueipisqns Jo fesodsip uodn aseapy
(08¥°2) (b6L) (989'9) 6701 (e€1'6) = ST+ = = = WY () SNETELY 1eaf ay dop (0] ) /ooy axisuayidwon [
(6T9°T) (6z9'cr) - (1e9'8) - (866%) - - - ¥ %mg (278 M g M . saweipisqns Jo [esodsip uodn aseapy
(608) (Log) (z0) - (z0) - - - = = suonesado udiasoy
1O UOIZ[SURI) UO S0UILAYIP IBuepxy
9149 _ 9TH'9 - - - 9149 - - - I BEE LY $1355¢ [eidueuy
ZEERTET: :m 9[es-10J-2[[feAL Jo anfea Jre ur sadue)
(89)/ SHETHEE LY :1eaf 2y 10j (550) /2woour asuatRiduiod 1agi )
ws (Lst) 6701 6701 - - (Bt \ $BEEY 1eaf ay 10 (ssor) /101
0017 HIS'TT 68561  TH6'TH 89501 198 60'F€ 690 9IH'¥S y88'sy H—H—ZW—&TH +107 drenue( 1 3y
£00%1T FISTT 68761 6T 89501 198 (670FE 4690 IS P85Sy H—}=HT+E=—-&" W 107U LY
L6087 8 wFT o usi 1181 - ¢ - - - EBNEIEny e a0 wour awisuataiduuon o,
LUST 9L 1181 - 1181 - - - - - BEZURZHEGEY suoneradg) udtaioy
JO UOIE[SURI) U0 SDUILYIp IBuexy
N*m;m _ .ﬁvw,m _ _ - va,m — - - .: Rm @ﬂl—d@ §)asse Mﬂudw:@
ZEGREET ¥[8 9[es-10J-2[ e feAL Jo anfea Jiey ur mmmsﬂu
W\Qﬂj E/M\E L & y.w ek 3} Joj awodut yﬁEﬁ&ES BElilg)
€817 19 Uit gt - - - - Y sl agp10j o1
90L'S81 18907 61091 0€1'1T JAYA 198 070¢ 690t 91F¥S 785SH H—H—H=——&T" €107 Arenuef [y

s)sasauy
Sunonuos

-UON

[50],

Amommc_ AAIIS

pajeuumooe) woyenjonyy

/syoxd
paureoy

Bueyoxy

FETRELTH
A30jnje)s

4d

EYRETEN
uoen[eAdx
jasse
[enoueuy
3[es-10j
Jqepeay

ye
E2

IATISAI
uondo
areyg

SEYEHETY

Kuedwo) a1 Jo S19UMO 0) A[qEINqLNY

mmLz
2]

junodde
wnudxd

areyg

SAON

[endes
panss|




86 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED X B3 v B 45 it 5 FR 2 #]

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

WA B R R

Yearended 31 December2014 EHZE-Z—MNFE+-_A=+—HILtFE

2014
—E-NmF

Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
LhEzs FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBREEZ
ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit before tax R A5 B a A 3,328 27,406
Adjustments for: FHE
Finance costs B 7% & A 3,936 5117
Interest income F EUA (46) (106)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEKR
plant and equipment, net SEIEEEE
(Yizs) - 58 6 (31) 21
Fair value gain on investment properties B YENTEEWRZE 6 - (300)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 W 6 (22,760) -
Fair value loss/ (gain) on financial assets at BATEZEZAEYZ
fair value through profit or loss SREENFE
EiE (a) 6 3,222 (11,323)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HERAFELIER
fair value through profit or loss AEZSREEZEE 6 7,840 -
Write-back of trade and other payables JERE 5 R E AR R
5 5 (15) (1)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 RFORE 6 1,280 -
Write-off of trade receivables FEURE 5 BR F 8 6 = 94
Depreciation e 6 2,014 2,773
(1,232) 23,631
(Increase) /decrease in inventories FE Ggmn),/ md 2,867 (787)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE ZBEFRIE AN (57,237) (10472)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BNRIE - BER
other receivables Hth e Uk F0R 2,754 324
Increase in trade payables JEHE S ERFUE N 88,379 7,026
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and BN R ERTE A
accruals g, Cr) (20,359) 4,574
Cash generated from operations KEEHELEZRS 15,172 24,796
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEMEH (1,043) (4,338)
Mainland China profits tax paid B B EERIS - (s11)
Net cash flows from operating activities BB EEZ
REFRE 14,129 19,947
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mABEREE

EZE-MNFF+A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2014 &,

Notes

B

2014
—F-NE

HKS$’000
TET

2013
—E—=4F
HK$'000
FAET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZTEREE 2

ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER

plant and equipment HETER 14 (1,638) (2,800)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets HErHHEEsmEE = 9)
Interest received =W F 2 46 106
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFELEZARZ

at fair value through profit or loss SRIEEFTSRIE 18,098 5058
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ﬁfr?aec%’)( 34 16,918 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEX

plant and equipment RAETE B TS a 40 125
Net cash flows from/ (used in) investing activities & & EBIFrEL (FH{E M)

2B FRE 33,464 (2,073)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHREEZ

ACTIVITIES ReRE
New bank and other borrowings IR IT R EMER 72,928 441,171
Repayment of bank loans BEBRTEXR (33,374) (468,113)
Advance to non-controlling shareholders BISIENGIE 223

of subsidiaries % B AR (1,025) (60)
Interest paid BFE (1,911) (2,220)
Special dividend paid ETRERIAR B 12 (63,454) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEEBFERZ

WEFnE (26,836) (29222)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBESEHEERFEM

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R 20,757 (11,348)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ #F#J) 2R & IR & EETEE 36,488 47,068
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREH) 72 FE (310) 768
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FR2EENBESZEIER

AT END OF YEAR 56,935 36,488
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HEeENREZEBERHAERY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Sais
Cash and bank balances as stated in the SZEEIRRRITIIRZ

consolidated statement of financial position HE RIRITEES 25 56,935 34,229
Time deposits with original maturity of BARKRIIEBA DR =MEA

less than three months when acquired, ZEHER - {ERIRITE

pledged as security for banking facilities B H 25 - 3,250
Bank overdrafts RITHEE 28 - (991)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the SEBERMERMIIRZ

consolidated statement of cash flows BHeMIReSEEEB 56,935 36,488
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31 December 2014

2.1

—T-mEF=A=+—§

Corporate Information

Orient Victory China Holdings Limited is an exempted limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered
office of the Company is located at Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square, P O Box 2804, Grand Cayman KYI-1112,
Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

During the year, the Group was involved in sale of air-tickets
and other travel related and other services, trading and retailing
of jewellery products, and the Group’s management services

and other investment holding,

The English name of the Company has been changed from
South China Holdings Limited to Orient Victory China
Holdings Limited, and the Chinese name HEBFHRIERE
[ 72 @] has been adopted as the Company’s dual foreign name,
with effect from 9 October 2014.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, certain available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000”) except when

otherwise indicated.

2.1

A E R

Orient Victory China Holdings Limited 52 5 # B 1%
BRERAGA—HRASESTEMAILZ
BHEERATF o AARK MR ERALR
Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, P O Box 2804,
Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands ° E &1
EERBBERIMAERATZER L -

RER - NEBUEEHEIHE K E M kiR
FANEMER KREEREHNTEALK
SERE RIS R EMREEBRET -

BTN +ANBR  RAFRMWEX
F T E A [ South China Holdings Limited | 285
[ Orient Victory China Holdings Limited] + 1 7
RAEEAPXEE [ RBEPEZERBERA
Al EREEEIIETR -

A S AL
ZEMBHRRERELGAMAE ([BA
SEEMAE)) Rz B EM B RE LR
(IBEEMBREERD (BREMBETEM
BREER - FEGHENN ([HEEGTE
Al]) h#E)  BERRGFTRAINBER
RPN ERBEREMAER - REHBHRETS
RIBESLKAEIRE - EREME  FT
AHfEEEREERRATFELBEAKRZ
TREECERFEERRIN - ZFRH
BRUETEN  FMESBRORBEERERLD
ZTrR(TER)  ZHEETHERN -
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Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue

to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group

had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—-H=+—H

2.1 I (42

ARk H 2 B
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31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—H=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendment to HKFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent

included in Annual Consideration in a Business
Improvements Combination’
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and
included in Annual Payables
Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle
Amendment to HKFRS 1 Meaning of Effective HKFRSs
included in Annual
Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

! Effective from 1 July 2014

Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only relevant
to an entity’s first HKFRS financial statements, the nature and
the impact of each amendment and interpretation is described

below:

2.0 FAHHOR BB 2 )

AEBENAFEPBRERE KRN TIIE
CRIPE S S

BB SRS R REZE
F105% - AU

WMEERF TR

BR G ELE LR

(BFTAR) (Z2—%F)

BB EEF 0 BT HEER
CHEN, THERE
BRI LRI & A E AL
(BFTA) THRE
BBt ERIF9% PTETAEER
CHEN, Hrest iy
&8 (ERMEERE HE

RREZET)-REFUR

TE-FFEZ-T——F  FERHCTEE
R FRMERBEZ
BB BREER
E25% (BFIA)

ZEFE-FFRF—-F  RHFEHAARE
B FEMEMBIEL  ZBiER
BB EHREER
835 (BFIA)

—E-FTFEZ_F—_F THENZIER
B FEMERBE:  EAFE
BT HHREER
F13%% (BFTA)

TE——FR2-F—=F  BUABEYERE
R FRAERBEZ B2 R Z
BB BREER
F15 (BFIA)

! B-E-MFELA-HREN

FEMBERMEEANE R (BFTA) EHEER
ZENABYHHRE LM B RRAARM - B
ZIRIERISN - BREBFIRREBZHERTE
TR
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of
an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Company does not qualify as an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set oft” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not have any offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting
in situations where over-the-counter derivatives
designated in hedging relationships are directly or
indirectly, novated to a central counterparty as a
consequence of laws or regulations, or the introduction
of laws or regulations. For continuance of hedge
accounting under this exception, all of the following
criteria must be met: (i) the novations must arise
as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations; (ii) the parties to
the hedging instrument agree that one or more clearing
counterparties replace their original counterparty to
become the new counterparty to each of the parties; and
(iii) the novations do not result in changes to the terms
of the original derivative other than changes directly
attributable to the change in counterparty to achieve
clearing. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group has not novated any derivatives
during the current and prior years.

31 December 2014

A A B Ak M

—E-NFE+_-_A=+—H

2.2 EEIBOR KRR EE) (&)

(a)

(b)

(o)
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(d)

(e)

(F)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises
a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs.
The interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability is
accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers
payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance
with the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered
upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation
clarifies that no liability should be recognised before
the specified minimum threshold is reached. The
interpretation has had no impact on the Group as the
Group applied, in prior years, the recognition principles
under HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets which for the levies incurred by
the Group are consistent with the requirements of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21.

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues
relating to the definitions of performance and service
conditions which are vesting conditions, including
(i) a performance condition must contain a service
condition; (ii) a performance target must be met
while the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a
performance target may relate to the operations or
activities of an entity, or to those of another entity in
the same group; (iv) a performance condition may
be a market or non-market condition; and (v) if the
counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide
service during the vesting period, the service condition
is not satisfied. The amendment has had no impact on

the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a business
combination that are not classified as equity should be
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS
9 or HKAS 39. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group.

2.2 EEFBUR R EE) (&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Changes in Accounting Policies

and Disclosures (continued)

(g)  The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rates
can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of

discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.

New and Revised HKFRSs and
New Disclosure Requirements
Under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Not Yet Adopted

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKEFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to HKERS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and

Amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate

(2011) Financial Statements®

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2010-2012 Cycle HKFRSs!

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2011-2013 Cycle HKFRSs!

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of

2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs?

2.2

2.3
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2.3 New and Revised HKFRSs and 2.3 Mi RFE M5l LB 1EGT
New Disclosure Requirements EHMBESHEAD R
Under the Hong Kong Companies WA A R P TE T BT B ER
Ordinance Not Yet Adopted WE (&)

(continued)

1

R-T—FLA—HEZEHRABD

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

FREHAMER
’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January : R-ZE—RF-—A—BRZEFRBH
2016 EJF HEF'? HR
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ? R-E—+F—H—Hak2&FBH
2017 FE R AR
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January N RZE—N\F—A—HBHx®ZEFRIBH
2018 FEHB AR
3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual s BRRME B ERELERNERE -
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and HERARZZE—RF—HA—HHZ &R
therefore is not applicable to the Group M FRVB®RE - BT EARAK
&8
In addition, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will gEoh - BERREN (Fen®E) BEEET
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information ERREE_T—AF+_A=T—HLF
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 EHREMBRENEIIREE - AEEIER
December 2015. The Group is in the process of making an ZEF BN BEL T -
assessment of the impact of these changes.
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to EHAEHERRAEBNZER B BHRE
be applicable to the Group is as follows: ER|HE—FFHBUOT :
In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version RZZE—NFENLA BRI ASEME
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial B GRS ERFEo A RZRA - 5w
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous TABEMNFBERBRER —BUBREES
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new TR 305 R B A B IR EE R o5 Y
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment IS ATARAR o 32 2ERIS| A DB RETE R
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS BEREFETEENFRTE - NEEEHF
9 from I January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption —E- N\F-A—BRENEETEHREE
of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification AIZE95 - NREETEMHEME BN BREE
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets. Further AERBEAEEeRmEEN D ERFE
information about the impact will be available nearer the Ei%g ° *ﬁ?ﬁ%‘i%z&—*ﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬂé%%&

implementation date of the standard. ZAEAIME i H EES
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2.3 New and Revised HKFRSs and

New Disclosure Requirements
Under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Not Yet Adopted
(continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The Group expects

to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer of
an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the
joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant
principles for business combinations in HKFRS 3. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint
operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional
interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to
HKEFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when
the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption

on I January 2016.

2.3
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2.3 New and Revised HKFRSs and
New Disclosure Requirements

Under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Not Yet Adopted
(continued)

HKEFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply
to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on | January 2017 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016
as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the

calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

New and Revised HKFRSs and
New Disclosure Requirements
Under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Not Yet Adopted
(continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in
January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Except for those described in note 2.2, the Group expects to
adopt the amendments from I January 2015. None of the
amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the amendment most applicable to the

Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments:

disclose the judgements made by management in applying the

Clarifies that an entity must

aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description
of operating segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation
of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision

maker.

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct

the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2.4 FEEFBRME (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in

host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or

loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not

remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2.4 FEEFBRME (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or

groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash- generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the

portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2.4 FEEGFBRME (&

Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 = based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2~ based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3~ based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash- generating unit to which the asset

belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.
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24 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  theentity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(Vii) a person identified in (a) (1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

2.4 EHEEFIBUORME (&)

CF YN
ERABRT - BRAT KRR RSB AR
D)

() ZALTR—BALHRALZER
Mz AL :

() B REGAEE
(i) HAEEBEAFEN X

(i) RAEEXNEEGRAATE
ERABMER—EKE

%

(b)  EALAHE TIIEA—EEEZE

Jrt::c)
BZ -

() HEREASEBR-—SEZ
X & 7]

(i) HEE/AZ REBZHER
AEEERAR (HE—RER
ZBRTE - KB A E SR R
VNG

(i) HEREASEI/FR-F=
HBZRERRA]

(iv) uAE\FJE/E_’JHV_ EﬁgZéé\Z\\
Al M — %ﬁ%Jﬁ%%E

ST ERNEE QT

vy ZEEBSAKERAKELEH
EH%EME,\%‘Jﬁﬁux_LE’] HEY N
MEHE

AH

(vi) Eiﬁﬁgi(a)lﬁﬁﬁ%%'JZ}\i%
AR S] :

kﬂl%

(i)  (QGO)IEMMEMALTHZERS

BAFENXBZERE (HZ

ERIERA) 2EEEEA
BHA— %BZE"



Annual Report 2014 ZE WS 105

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the

asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Furniture and leasehold 10% to 25%, not exceeding the
improvements lease terms

Machinery and equipment 10% to 25%

Motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.
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24 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end

of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or

loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or

loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2.4 FEEFFERME (2)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are

acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and negative net
changes in fair value presented as fair value loss on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial

recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other

expenses for receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor

designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale financial asset revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
gains or losses, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale financial asset revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
assets are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted available-for-sale financial assets
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable

future or until maturity.
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24 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified

to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e, removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2.4 FEEFBRME (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of

impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (ie, the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been

realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other expenses in the statement of profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence

that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in

the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—-H=+—H

2.4 EHEEHIBURME (&)

i A I E (48
HIE AR 1 5

M E B R ERR AR A SE AT E R AP E
MIFE A FEFIFR 2 FF LB T AR,
BEE  BiESBEHREENREERZE
Mé%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ’ﬁﬁ 35 B 3R R IR b5 R R

RenEnMRECHANEEAE ZFEE
ZREBENEEE -

A Hi 67 < il B

AAHfHESREEMNS - AREREER
EHMARFERETETERRR TN —AREX
—HERECDELRE -

et H E & E L ERE - BIERA (1
EREMAE REHE) BEERATFED
ZRNBR AR R AT R R R R AR ERE
BrosBaAterERET SR E N ER
i‘%mﬁ&m\"

MRARER S BERAIHLE - AFBEER
HEREEZA ifﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁﬁi%%ﬁ_ﬁﬁ’éﬁﬁiﬁ
B TAIE] JHEZIARE 2 RKA L EIE
Al - AL R A FEERERKAR
ZE M - EEEBRBRNLIRE - B
BRAERNH NP EZEERTEZ RE
18 ORISR ZERER WA RER ZRE
ER) REMEmEmRET IR 0 WRIBER
FHER - DB RAIHELENER TANRE
BRI A EBmR O - ﬁfﬁ?&ﬁ ~FHE
RSB DNE B E b 2 W as P AR



114 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED X B " B ¥ Bt A& B 2 ¥

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i A B AR W RE

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—H=+—H

24 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which

the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Groupss financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, certain accruals and

advances from shareholders.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continied)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of

profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,

cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.
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24 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not

restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group has established a provision for severance payments
in accordance with the relevant regulations in Mainland China.
Compensation payables to employees upon termination of the
employment contracts therewith are charged to the provision

when incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2.4 FEEFBRME (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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24 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods

sold;

commission income, upon the sale of goods or when

the relevant services have been rendered;

service income, when the relevant services have been

rendered;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (‘equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined using an option pricing model, further details of

which are given in note 32 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as at the beginning and end of that period.
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24 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution staff retirement
scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for its employees (including
certain directors), the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the eligible
employees” basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves
the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s
employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant amount
of forfeited contributions.

The Group also operates another defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Employees who joined the Group before I December 2000 had
the option to join either one of the schemes. Employees who
joined the Group on or after I December 2000 are only eligible
to join the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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24 Summary of Significant 2.4 EEEFFIERME (2)

Accounting Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e, assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs

that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,

they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.
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24 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong

dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong

dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other

than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount

rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZE—MHFE+_H=+—H
HORE R B AL E

EREEREAEENGEMIERKRE - AIE
SREMEIIWA X BEMBED
BECENMEANHERESREALIARA
BEREOHE - A5 RREK - ARBRERR
MG EERE - AT EHEEERIAR
RKEFENEEXRERESRIELELRH

%éo

st B B A2 1k

RER - BRKEENEREE L EA
ERt T EERRZ T 2RORMMM T - &
FEAAREREELARBKEER N/
BEEARREAAE 2 EXER

T i B 2 Dl (AR AF)

AEBRESERSHRIEEAFCREE
ERFEEMBENR - ke EERRNH
AR ER TR AR R EITRE
Aal e R—REEX —ReELFEMUNKRE
EBRLERKERERERRE RIS
BIEE QP ERBEEXNAEEREEMRE T
BmE o RFERHEEKRATIREHEREL
MEER A FRERORNNZZAFHER
% Al RIS B E R & 5% B E G HEIAK
i E - BT EEREER - BEELAR
AREAHEEIHSELBENNTRHAK
REenEWERBSENTREUAAEZER
ERENRE -



128 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED X B v B ¥ Bt A B 2 ¥

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i A B AR W RE

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—H=+—H

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial

assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale financial
assets and recognises movements of their fair values in equity.
When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. At 31 December 2014, no impairment losses have been
recognised for available-for-sale financial assets (2013: Nil). The
carrying amount of available-for-sale assets was HK$54,509,000
(2013: HK$48,566,000).

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising
from the inability of its customers to make the required
payments. The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing
of its trade receivable balances, customers’ creditworthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of its
customers was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group would be required
to revise the basis of making the allowance and its future
results would be affected. At 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was HK$29,089,000 (2013:
HKS$181,749,000).

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax treatment
of certain transactions are required in determining income tax
provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to

take into account all changes in tax legislation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. There was no deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses
at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 December 2014 was HK$6,062,000 (2013:
HK$187,047,000). Further details are contained in note 30 to

the financial statements.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three

reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the travel related and other services segment, which
comprises the sale of air tickets and other travel-related
services principally to corporate clients (the “Corporate
Travel Business”), and the sale of air tickets and other
travel-related services principally to travel agents
before the Disposal (as defined in the Company’s
circular dated 12 August 2014 (the “Circular”)) (the
“Wholesale Travel Business”). On 4 September 2014,
the Disposal was completed and the Disposal Group (as
defined in the Circular) which was engaged in, among
other things, the Wholesale Travel Business, ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Company, while the Corporate
Travel Business continued to be conducted by the

Group.
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BEK]) RN-_T-HFAAMA -
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—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

4. Operating Segment Information
(continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
recorded the revenue and profit of the Corporate Travel
Business for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014, and of the Wholesale Travel Business
for the period from 1 January 2014 to the date of

completion of the Disposal;

the trading and retail of jewellery segment, which
involves the distribution and sale of jewellery products;

and

the investment holding segment, which comprises the
Group’s management services and other investment

holding.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating

segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about

resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment

performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/

(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.

The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently

with the Group’s profit before tax except that finance costs are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable and interest-bearing bank

and other borrowings as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

-+

g iaEst (&)

(a) (%8)
HE-Z—NF+_A=+—HILHF
B AEESSEBREEBR -
—ME—A—HE-_Z—NE+_A
=t+—HHBEZBARSF - AR
RESBEEBR T —OF—H—H
EHRESETNK 2 BB 2 WA K

gl

b) HREEZRTESH WEREEM
ZOHRHERS - &

(o) HEEESE BREAKENEER

R EAM I E R

%ﬁ@%ﬁ%%$%lﬂméﬁ$2%%’
IMEH B ERD B MR EZRE -
BRBEDBBATRE S BEHN,(EE) (K

RBRTLATAE %%mﬁil//(ﬁﬁTa ZEE) T
Al o BRI TEBRN(BR) HEH
AR S 2 R MWmﬂﬁi'ﬁM%E%T

BIERZTE ©

DEMEBEL T BEEN IR LM BRITR
HifE5 o DHRZEFEENEEREER
EE"



Annual Report 2014 ZE-NAESEHR 131

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B B AR W RE

31 December2014 —ZE—MF+—-F=+—H

Operating Segment Information 4. &REHIFER (#&)
(continued)

BEZ_ZF-OF+-A=1t—-HLHFE

Year ended 31 December 2014

Group - 3
Travel related Trading and
and retail of Investment
other services jewellery holding Total
Hik iz 48 A % %E
Hittk% EFZREE REZER k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THExT FHERT
Segment revenue: DERULA :
Sales to external customers HHNR B iEE 72,988 51,680 - 124,668
Segment results P 16,242 1,994 (10,972) 7,264
Reconciliation: #EE -
Finance costs B 75 & (3,936)
Loss before tax B ATEE 3,328
Segment assets and total assets PHPEEREELE 35,990 32,777 117,215 185,982
Segment liabilities SBERE 34,931 4,642 880 40,453
Reconciliation: #k -
Corporate and other unallocated TrEREMAIEAE
liabilities 16,050
Total liabilities BEesE 56,503
Other segment information: BihoZER :
Fair value loss on financial assets at I AFELEBRAEZ
fair value through profit or loss SREENTEERE - - 3,222 3,222
Loss on disposal of financial assets at & Z A FELL Bz
fair value through profit or loss AEZEMEEY
EiE - - 7,840 7,840
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT Z Wz = = (22,760) (22,760)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE S EETURIE 1,280 = = 1,280
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWZE « BE MR
plant and equipment, net HE 7Kz B8 (31) - - (31)
Depreciation e 1,937 76 1 2,014
Capital expenditure* BARY B 1,456 153 29 1,638

and equipment.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

# Includes the revenue and results of the Corporate Travel
Business from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014 and the
Wholesale Travel Business from 1 January 2014 to the date of

completion of the Disposal.

© BARLMEENE - BE LB -

# BRAGREXFER-_FT-OF-A A=
TE-MEF A=+ BRI WA RE
B ARIREHBEEBR T —NF—A—
HEHEFETKZ HHRZ WA REE -
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4. Operating Segment Information 4. REHILER (££)

(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE
Group £ [

Trading and
O

Travel related retail Investment
other services of jewellery holding Total
AR %
Eib%l HHRTE  WEALR a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET THET
Segment revenue: DEUA
Sales to external customers HWHINK PIE 114,519 86,037 - 200,556
Segment results DEEE 36415 2,058 (5,950) 32,523
Reconciliation: HER
Finance costs 5 E H (5117)
Profit before tax BREL AT F 27,406
Segment assets and total assets DWEEREELAE 255,150 36,132 180,147 471429
Segment liabilities SEERE 144,610 7,390 65,510 218,010
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other unallocated PELRHMAPERE
liabilities 39,416
Total liabilities BERE 257426
Other segment information: HitpZER -
Fair value gain on investment KEYENFERZE
properties - - (300) (300)
Fair value gain on financial assets at ~ ZATF(ELBR AR Z
fair value through profit or loss SREEANTEKS - - (11,323) (11,323)
Write-off of trade receivables FEUNE 5 BR s 94 - - 94
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWZE - FiE &R E
plant and equipment, net THH 7 EE % 21 - - 21
Depreciation hE 2,710 62 1 2,773
Capital expenditure* BARY 2,759 35 6 2,800
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BARAYHBIEDE - MERZE LN -

and equipment.
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Operating Segment Information 4. REHIER (&
(continued)

Geographical segments b 358, 43 5

(a) Revenue from external customers (a)  HIPFEFRA
2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=fF
HK$’000 HKS$°000
THET TET
Hong Kong 5 72,988 84,437
Mainland China B R P 51,680 116,119
124,668 200,556
The revenue information above is based on the A FEZ W AER TR P 2] 5 o

locations of the customers.

(b)  Total assets (b) B EMHE
2014
—E-mEF

Non-current Current Total
assets assets assets
FREBEE REEE EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET FHET
Hong Kong B 54,597 98,607 153,204
Mainland China B K R 364 32,414 32,778
54,961 131,021 185,982

2013
Non-current Current Total
assets assets assets
EMENEE mENEE BEMAE
HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHT FHT FHEIT
Hong Kong &5 95,118 216,549 311,667
Mainland China ==l N 155 32,507 127,255 159,762

127,625 343,804 471,429




134 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED X B " B ¥ Bt A B 2 ¥

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i A B AR W RE

31 December2014 —ZE—MFE+—-A=+—H

AN EX N

WA - TRAAREEEE  BRETRNBE
ERASFI% 2 ERWERTFE £
RUIRG 2 BERASA -

5. Revenue and Other Income 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discount; the value of services rendered and commission

income during the year.

WA R A AT

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

Group
zm
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FAETT
Revenue WA
Commission and service income from T 8% AEL A % EL At AR 75
travel related and other services 2Rk
ARISHA 72,988 114,519
Trading and retail of jewellery HKEEIRNEE 48,499 81,391
Commission income from sale of jewellery HEHEE ZHERA 3,181 4,646
124,668 200,556
Other income Ha A
Handling charge FEER 964 1,541
Advertising income =N 1,145 613
Bank interest income RITHBUA 46 106
Foreign exchange differences, net FE R =% 558 - 2,906
Write-back of trade and other payables FEE 5 R HAb
A< K 8 15 51
Others Hith 637 1,245
2,807 6,462
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Profit Before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

% A i i A

ARBBBANENSI0R (GEA)

Group
&£E

2014

—g-—mF
HK$°000
3 FET

Notes

2013
=4
HK$'000
FET

Cost of inventories sold S E RN 41,521 77,110
Depreciation e 14 2,014 2,773
Minimum lease payments under T MEFLKEEE
operating leases in respect of HFEHEENR
land and buildings 11,202 10,849
Auditors’ remuneration =BT & 820 820
Staff costs (including BINRA (BEES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): B (FfsEs)) -
Wages and salaries and other benefits IE - FHehEMER 43,398 57,539
Pension scheme contributions** BIKS T EI 3,752 5,320
Total employee benefit expenses BBt e E R 47,150 62,859
Fair value gain on investment properties WEWENEERSE 15 - (300)
BRATELERARZ
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at SREEANTE
fair value through profit or loss Bl (k) 3,222 (11,323)
HERATFELER
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair ABEZE R
value through profit or loss BEZEBE 7,840 -
Impairment of trade receivables* FEUE 5 BRFURE" 21 1,280 -
Write-off of trade receivables* FEUNE 5 BR UM = 94
HEYE  WEREE
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,  JH B Z [E518
plant and equipment, net* (W) - EEE (31) 21
Foreign exchange differences, net fE H E%8 - JRER 1,217 (2,906)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W 34 (22,760) -
* These balances are included in “other operating expenses” in ’ ZEERCEENEARER HBEEE

the consolidated statement of profit or loss. AlIA-

R-ZZ—NF+_A=+—H AEELE
VR U AVEHRGR K & 5 B R R E Z K
ZA(ZE—=F:8)-

o At 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited o
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension schemes in future years (2013: Nil).
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7. Finance Costs 7.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

S %5 2 H

MBER 2 OMIT

Group

%8
2014 2013

—E—=4F
HK$'000
FET

—F-NEF
HKS$’000
TR

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other loans AR AFRNE R EZIRTT
wholly repayable within five years BN B REMERZ
B 1,911 2,220
Interest on advances from shareholders % B £ ZR ) 8
(note 39(a)(iii)) (P 5E39(a) (iii)) 2,025 2,897
3,936 5117
8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. HEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section

161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), is as follows:

AEEEEWIZ LRI REBQRIES
(F622E) MXRI1F781E WERBAFBEAQ
AMED (F32F) Fl6FHBENT

Group
&

2014 2013

—EB-mE T =F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET TAET

Fees EE-Yokn 386 460
Other emoluments: Hipis -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REEREWRGE 1,600 1,920

Pension scheme contributions IR EEIHR 80 96

1,680 2,016

2,066 2,476
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. HEME (&)

=

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) MWorEBiTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERAINTFEIIENTES Z2HBE
during the year were as follows: AT N

2014 2013

—F-mE —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FETT

Mr. Dong Xiaojie RAREE 31 -

Mr. He Qi fAIEy oA 31 -

Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery BB E 31 -

Mr. David John Blackett David John Blackett5% 4 78 100

Ms. Tse Wong Siu Yin Elizabeth HE N T - 75

Mr. Cheng Hong Kei BRI S A4 §7 75

225 250
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31

8.

December2014 —ZE—PF+—-F=+—H

Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. HEHME (&
(b) Executive directors and non- (b) HBATEFRIFEHITEDSR

executive directors

Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total

Fees benefitsinkind contributions remuneration

e BER BASEHE

ne BWAE B el
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET TR TR

2014 —E-RF

Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Shi Baodong ARERESE - - - .
Mr. Wang Jianhua FRELt - - - -
Ms. Xu Yongmei Tkt - - - -
Mr. Ng Hung Sang REELE 8 1,600 80 1,688
Mr. Richard Howard Gorges Richard Howard Gorges 7t 8 - - 8
Ms. Cheung Choi Ngor REMZ T 8 - - 8
Mr. Ng Yuk Fung Peter RMBEEE 8 - - 8
32 1,600 80 1,712

Non-executive directors: FATEE:

Mr. Zhou Jiangyong BILELE - - - -
Ms. Ng Yuk Mui Jessica RMBRLT 38 - - 38
Mr. David Michael Norman David Michael Norman4 4 91 - - 91
129 - - 129

161 1,600 80 1,841
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. HEME (&
(b) Executive directors and non- (b) HATEERIFEHTES (&)

executive directors (continued)

Salaries, Pension

allowances and scheme Total

Fees benefits in killd contributions remuneration

Fe oML RAEHE

ik Bz X e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT TAT
2013 ZT-=F
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Ng Hung Sang RBERLE 10 1,920 96 2,026
Mr. Richard Howard Gorges Richard Howard Gorgesf‘ﬁ_&,_ 10 - - 10
Ms. Cheung Choi Ngor REMLL 10 - - 10
Mr. Ng Yuk Fung Peter RBBLE 10 - - 10
40 1,920 96 2,056
Non-executive directors: EHTES
Ms. Ng Yuk Mui Jessica RBExZL 50 - - 50
Mr. David Michael Norman David Michael Normant &£ 120 - - 120
170 - - 170
210 1,920 96 2,226
During the year, Mr. Shi Baodong, Mr. Wang Jianhua, FRN - ORRERAEE S TEELAE - KB
Ms. Xu Yongmei and Mr. Zhou Jiangyong agreed T REAIBEEDFIREREEZME
to waive directors’ remuneration of HK$598,000, 598,000/8 JT * 191,000 JT * 191,000 7T &
HK$191,000, HK$191,000 and HK$191,000, 191000870 (ZT—=%F: &) -

respectively (2013: Nil).
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2013: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the

remaining four (2013: four) highest paid employees who are

not directors of the Company are as follows:

44 e 1 3 O H

RERN AERSHFMERRE—® (ZF
—ZF:—R)EF HFMFEBRIER X
MisEs - FREBKNE (ZT—=F : UHK)
HEARREZZHESFHNEEMSFHIEHE
s

2013

—E—=fF

HK$000

FETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2N EDNZE 2,489 5,181
Discretionary bonuses IS TEAL - 1,978
Pension scheme contributions RIRKSETEIHE 47 156
2,536 7,315

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

S EREH N E S ABEH SRR S
m -

Number of employees

EBEAE
2014 2013
—E-mE —_T—=F
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001,% 7T 2 1,000,00078 7T 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T 2= 1,500,000/ 7T = 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 222,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 7T 22,500,000/ 7T = 1
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Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable

elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in

the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZE—MF+_-_A=+—H

10. Fifgfi

BB m%&&fWEE%EEZMJﬁ
R A AT E165% (ZF — =F 1 16.5%)
VEH BB - HAbih[R 2 FERBUE R THAR IR A
SEREZERR AEAEEREMIRITRE
u‘l’%%ﬂlﬁi\ ©

Group
%m
2014 2013
—g-mE -T-=%
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Current — Hong Kong BIH — &8
Charge for the year NEEZLZH 2,727 5,248
Overprovision in prior years A EEBERE - (10)
Current — Mainland China BNHE — AR B A pE
Charge for the year NEEZ L H 59 295
Total tax charge for the year NEEFRIB H 4258 2,786 5,533

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate to the tax expenses at the

effective tax rate is as follows:

BRES AR AR A BB RSB R ER A K fig
ERERENHBERS 2EERRDOT -

Group
5
2014
—-—mf
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET TET
Profit before tax [ T BT A 3,328 27,406
Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% ABEBFETRZE16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) (ZZT—=%F : 165%)
S BT 549 4,522
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries n EF‘ [5R] K oE 4 s 2 T RO BT /BB
operating in Mainland China NAIZ PR R 2 & 6 100
Adjustments in respect of current tax of VAT HARE ph BN ERRN 18 © A%
previous periods - (10)
Income not subject to tax BARB YA (3,764) (2,035)
Expenses not deductible for tax R HFHY S 6,078 3,800
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 2 R LA BRI IR TS 1R (83) (846)
Tax losses not recognised AERZ BISER = 2
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate of BAREBE BRI ES3.7%
83.7% (2013:20.2%) (ZT—=%F :202%) 5tEZ
FHIEY H 2,786 5533
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11. Profit Attributable to Owners of 11. AT #EA AFEAL B A]
the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company HE—_ET-—MmME+-_A=+—HIFEAR
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of B AEEEREENBIED T ARA BB
HK$57,040,000 (2013: HK$78,000) which has been dealt with &I H57,0400008 LB B (ZFE—=4F :
in the financial statements of the Company (note 33(b)). 78,00075 7T ) (MIEE33(b)) °
12. Dividend 12. BB
2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
F#ETT
Special dividend, paid, of 3.48 HK cents 2TERIIEE - BRR T EpR34875(L
(2013: Nil) per ordinary share ZE—=FF) 63,454 -
A special dividend of 3.48 HK cents per ordinary share was paid BERZZE—NENAZ+NHBTZRE
to shareholders of the Company on 1 September 2014 pursuant BRAG FBBAZEBRZER  ARFIRZ
to an ordinary resolution passed ata special general meeting on Z—NFNA—BEBREZ(TERREZK
29 August 2014. EER348EA -
13. Earnings Per Share Attributable to  13. AR HEA A\ REAG T35 2 A

Owners of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$1,029,000 (2013: HK$21,812,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,823,401,376 (2013:
1,823,401,376) in issue during the year.

EREXBINCENRBERAREE AR
1l AN £ 12 34 1,029,000 7T (= =5
21,812,000/ 7T) REFEAD FHITMEFHE
B IR 81,823401,3760% (= = F:
1,823401,3760% ) & °

=

=
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Earnings Per Share Attributable to
Owners of the Company (continued)

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares

into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

based on:

27
RREFTESRELRR

Earnings

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company, used in the basic and diluted

JEASE 5 A

earnings per share calculations

13.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZE—MF+_-_A=+—H

A0 ) AT N AN B B £ A

==
(&

SR ERNSBEIRBEARRHEE AR
MAFERGMNTE - BRI EZ ¥
BRBEBE AR ESRERNERN 2 A F
BB T ERERBN ERBAEEER#
BB BB R TTE R A T B R A
EERTZEBRZ TR -

FRERNLEESEN 2AEWT -

2014
—E-F

2013
—E—=4F
HKS$'000
FET

HKS$’000
FiB

RESBANNARRERA

1,029 21,812

Number of shares

RIEE

2014
—E-IF

iy
A ESRER R
REERMHFR

Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic

and diluted earnings per share calculations

EETEARINEFHH

1,823,401,376 1,823,401,376

The Company’s share options have no dilutive effect for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013
because the exercise price of the Company’s share options was
higher than the average market price of the Company’s shares
for both years. As at 31 December 2014, all outstanding share

options of the Company have been cancelled.

HREE-T—NOF+_A=+—HRKZ=ZZ
—=F+Z A=+ —HIEFEARRERE
ZIIEERRARARND 2THEFEFHE -
WAR B BRER F A mEFE S EE TR
Z - R-_ZE-—MNF+-A=1+—8H ' AR7F
PEMARITE ZBRESE T -
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14. W3 ~ W Modt

Group &

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture and

leasehold  Machinery and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
BRREERE - BBRRE EH L
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TR
31 December 2014 —E-NE+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-F=+—H
and at | January 2014: ERZZ-—mE-A—0:
Cost B 8,044 10,395 7,297 25,736
Accumulated depreciation SHME (5,781) (6,866) (5,074) (17,721)
Net carrying amount BEEEE 2,263 3,529 2,223 8,015
At 1 January 2014, net of RZZE—NF—HF—H"
accumulated depreciation Bk 2:HE 2,263 3,529 2,223 8,015
Additions INE 660 711 267 1,638
Disposals HE (1) (8) - (9)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEMBAR (FisEa4) (1,931) (3,238) (1,958) (7,127)
Depreciation provided AEEIWEER
during the year (692) (824) (498) (2,014)
Exchange realignment I i (23) (27) (1) (51)
At 31 December 2014, net of R-E—E
accumulated depreciation +-A=+—-H8"
Mk 25T E 276 143 33 452
At 31 December 2014: R-ZE—NF
+-A=+-8:
Cost AR 84§ 857 330 2,032
Accumulated depreciation ZEHNE (569) (714) (297) (1,580)
Net carrying amount REFE 276 143 33 452
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. ¥ - &&= Nk (&
(continued)

Group 5

Furniture and

leasehold fachinery Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
GRREERE  HEKRE B ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET FET
31 December 2013 —Z-—=f+-A=t+—H
At 1 January 2013: RZE-=f-A-R:
Cost B 7279 8,867 6,061 22,807
Accumulated depreciation ZEIFE (4,932) (5,855) (4,289) (14,776)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,347 3312 2372 8,031
At | January 2013, net of RZE—=%—/F—-H"
accumulated depreciation Hg 25t E 2,347 3312 2,372 8,031
Additions RE 680 1,404 716 2,800
Disposals HeE (14) - (132) (146)
Depreciation provided FRFTERE
during the year (774) (1262) (737) (2,773)
Exchange realignment [E 5 = 24 75 4 103
At 31 December 2013, net of NZE—=F
accumulated depreciation +-A=1+—-8"
Hg 2t E 2,263 3,529 2,223 8,015
At 31 December 2013: R-E—=F
+ZRA=+—AR:
Cost %N 8,044 10,395 7,297 25,736
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (5781) (6,866) (5074) (17,721)

Net carrying amount AREHE 2263 3,529 2223 8015
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. ¥ -~ B)E Kikfs (&

(continued)
Company QF
Machinery and
equipment
BERRE
HK$’000
TER
31 December 2014 “Z-MFE+=A=t+-H
At 1 January 2013, RZZE-=%F-A—-H"
31 December 2013 —ZE-=F+-A=1+—H
and 1 January 2014 k=ZE-—mE—-H—H
Cost 3% -
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE -
Net carrying amount RHEFE -
At 1 January 2014, net of RZZE-MNFE-A—-H"
accumulated depreciation Nk Z2:E -
Additions NE 29
Depreciation provided AEEHELER
during the year (1)
At 31 December 2014, net of R-E—ME
accumulated depreciation +-R=+—-8"
MR 2EHTE 28
At 31 December 2014: RZZE—M%F
+ZA=+-8:
Cost B 29
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (1)

Net carrying amount REFE 28
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A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZE—MF+_-_A=+—H

15. #EW*E

Group
£H
2014 2013
—F—=F
HK$°000

—z-mE
HK$’000
Tl Tt

Carrying amount at 1 January W—HA—HEmE 38,900 38,600
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NEEREEHK S - 300
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HERB AT (MzE4) (38,900) _
Carrying amount at 31 December N+t A=1+—HE®mE = 38,900

The Group’s investment properties were situated in Hong Kong

and were held under medium lease terms.

The Group’s investment properties consisted of land in Hong
Kong. The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2013 by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$38,900,000. The
Group’s finance division had discussions with the valuer on the
valuation methodology and valuation results twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial

reporting.

AEBREMEMNES  URTPHEES
IR A -

REBZEREVERTE R EBN L -
REBHREMENR -_T—=F+_F=+
—HBBELEEEERGER A B EFT
BRAFIEF TS - 4 1E 738,900,000/ 7T ©
REE B ERTERFEMBEREE
THER - —FREGEMFRRAGER
EREERER -
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15. Investment Properties (continued) 15. &k (&

Fair value hierarchy OV g 8]
All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the B EYEES B ARNFEEREIR -

fair value hierarchy.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FNA - FIREEL 2 A EER A FER
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers SEG - PN o B S o

into or out of Level 3.

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong TR BEBNREYEN A TELELERAH
was determined using market comparison approach by reference ALY E NG A RERAREENHEEE
to recent sales prices of comparable properties on a price per BIEAMGLEAEE - TRAKREMSE
square metre basis. Below is a summary of the key inputs to the HEETEHAZENHE

valuation of investment properties:

Range (weighted average)

EE (hnEFY)

Price per square metre HK$3,229 to HK$10,764 (HK$7,629)
FET KB 32297872 10,764/8 7T (7,629787T)
A significant increase/decrease in the price per square metre $H*Ei§j§¢5iﬂﬂ//ﬁ9\ﬂ%§§rﬁiﬁﬁ
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value WEE N TERIBIEM,SFHD -

of the investment properties.
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16. 7 Pk &g 2 W] Z e 2

Company
AL
2014 2013
—T=F
HK$’000

—z-mE
HK$’000
Tl Tt

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD - WA E - 181,712
Less: Impairment” W RUE” - (33,500)
- 148212

# As at 31 December 2013, an impairment was recognised for
interests in subsidiaries with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$181,712,000 (before deducting the impairment loss)
because certain subsidiaries have been making loss. The
impairment was derecognised during the year upon the

disposal of the subsidiaries.

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 43 to the financial statements.

On 30 April 2014 the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Tremendous Success Holdings
Limited (“Tremendous”) for disposal of its equity interests
in South China (BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries for a
consideration of HK$95,466,000. The transaction was
completed on 4 September 2014 and a gain on disposal of
HK$22,760,000 was recorded in the current year. Further
details of this disposal are included in note 34 to the financial

statements.

# R-E—=F+_A=+—8 RHBAF
2 HEss (MERMEE181,712,000%8 7T (FIIBRLE
Ei8R1)) CHERRBE  THRETHEB AR
EXBE - PEWNBARIE  REREKEE
IRIEHERR o

FEY R RN B AR FIAREER  REK
W 45 [B] 7 SE R o

KRB EBWE QBB BRI RE M
F¥43 °

NZ_ZE-—HWNFMHNA=TH X2 A
HiTremendous Success Holdings Limited
([Tremendous]) RIS B B Hisk * RAB A
R B 95,466,0007%8 7T H & 18 7 South China (BVI)
Limited 2 BB AR 2RI - ZRHR_F
—MHFENAERB TR - WRAFESEEEE
Y £522,760,000/8 7T © B BRZ L E MR IBE RN
PR ERARMIRE34 ©
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16. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

2014

—E-mEF

16. JAMHE 2~ v 2 sk (4F)

BT 7 T K S 2 0 2 S B 2
AR -

Percentage of equity interest held by JEERERISENRET DL

non-controlling interests:

Chongging Fortuna Information Technology ~ EZEEBEMEHEER A A
Co,, Ltd.

Four Seas Tours Limited ERTHE AR AR

Nanjing South China Baoging Jewellery HREEERREEMAR AT

Co,, Ltd.
Tianjin South China Real Estate Development  KEFZERFHEMRZE AR A A
Co. Ltd.

35%

44.37%

34.55%

49%

5B SRR R aE Y
AEERN(BE)
EEREREMMKRARAT

Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests:

Chongging Fortuna Information Technology
Co,, Ltd.

Four Seas Tours Limited MEIR{THEERE AR

Nanjing South China Baoging Jewellery AR EEER R E AR AT

Co,, Ltd.
Tianjin South China Real Estate Development  KZ2FEREHEFZEER A A
Co. Ltd.

2014
—E-NmF

HKS$’000
TERT

(744)
20

346

(109)

2013
—=E—=4F
HK$'000
THET

201

(145)

BEHRE B IR R D
RETHERR -
EEREREMMXARAT

Accumulated balances of non-controlling
interests at the reporting dates:

Chongging Fortuna Information Technology
Co,, Ltd.

Four Seas Tours Limited ERTHE AR AR

Nanjing South China Baoging Jewellery MR EERRE AR A
Co,, Ltd.

Tianjin South China Real Estate Development

Co. Ltd.

REFEFHERBZAR AT

2014
—E-ImF

HK$’000
T8

1,824

5,306

2013
—E—=4F
HK$'000
FET

1,116

4,280

16,304
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16. FRHHE A 2Rk (A2

TRIR BB R R ZMBEERE - F7
RECRREHE AR S ZANETF

Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

Nanjing South
China Baoging
Jewellery Four Seas
Co.,Ltd. Tours Limited
MREEEE WSkTH
REEH BRAF
BIRA A
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
2014 —E=-—mE
Revenue WA 51,681 23,629
Other revenue Hib A 1,159 171
Total expenses B HE%E (52,162) (20,685)
Profit for the year FEEHEF 678 3,115
Total comprehensive income for the year FErEmMKFERE 404 3,115
Current assets RENVEE 32,663 40,542
Non-current assets IEREEE 364 60
Current liabilities mEBaE (20,235) (35,389)
Net cash flows from RSB B FTE A
operating activities ZHREFRE 1,623 20,580
Net cash flows used in WA SEE T A
investing activities ZREFRE ( 141 ) (66)
Net cash flows used in BbE S EFTEA
financing activities ZHEERE (1.298) (13,751)
Net increase in cash and cash B4 RIB4AZ(EERHE
equivalents 184 6,763
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16. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued) 16. RB AR Z LR (&)

Chongging Tianjin
Fortuna ~ Nanjing South South China

Information ~ China Baoging Real Estate

Technology Jewellery Development

Co, Ltd. Co, Ltd. Co. Ltd.
BEER MRREEE REFE
B REEMH FHERE
BIRDA] BRDA] ARDE

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FET
2013 —T-=F
Revenue WA 7,049 86,037 -
Other income HAb A - 631 -
Total expenses BERBR (7,033) (86,085) (296)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEM/(FB) 16 583 (296)
Total comprehensive income FEXENRGEASE
for the year 151 1,019 958
Current assets TENEE 5,304 36,060 12,058
Non-current assets FERBEE 222 294 22,532
Current liabilities mENBE (1,805) (23,966) (296)
Net cash flows from/(used in) mESEEEL (FTER)
operating activities ZEEFRE 1,968 2,128 (308)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) BERHHMEL/(FER)
investing activities ZHEFRE (10s) (17) 7
Net cash flows used in financing BEEHAEACESERE
activities - (3272) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and He MRS EEIER

cash equivalents FEA R 1,863 (1,161) (301)
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31 December2014 —ZE—MF+_-_A=+—H

17. W7 Ak 6 o il i

Group

S
2014 2013
—F—=F
HK$°000
THETT

—z-mE
HK$’000
Tl

Club debentures and membership efMEALRSE - 461
Listed equity investments, at market value LFHIEAEE - EmSEE 54,509 48,105
54,509 48,566

During the year, the fair value gain in respect of the Group's
listed equity investments recognised in other comprehensive
income amounted to HK$6,416,000 (2013: HK$3,847,000), of
which HK$4,998,000 (2013: Nil) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss as a

result of the disposal of subsidiaries during the year (note 34).

The investments in club debentures and memberships had no

fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted

market prices.

Other Non-Current Assets

Land development costs

Deposit for acquisition of properties

TR

WBEMEZ B

18.

REA - NEEH ETRARE X FEREZE
O E A 2 TE WY 25 B 5R ) & BB 736,416,000 T
ZE— = 138470008 7T) + EH14998000
BT (ZE—Z=ZF:8) BARFALENE
~E (M3 4) AAEMEEKEEN H

SfEFLERNKRETEEEDHALE
ﬁ,%\):'f_( ©

EHARAREN A FEATBRTHERER -

oAt IR

Group
%5

2014 2013
—EB-NFE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAETT
- 22,528
- 6,622

- 29,150
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19. Goodwill 19. w2
Group ==
2014 2013
—EB-NFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET FET
AUkmmwmuMnawwmymwm W—H—H -
PR KR EHE 2,994 2,994
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEWB AR (KEE4) (2,994) -
At 31 December, cost and net carryingamount A+ —-H=+—8 -
PR K BR T HE - 2,994
. [
20. Inventories 20. #&
Group
=
2014 2013
—EB-NFE —Z=—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT FET
Raw materials BER R 2,017 2,302
Finished goods Bk 26,009 29,668
28,026 31,970
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s inventories with aggregate RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H AEBEZR5t
carrying amount of HK$11,255,000 (2013: HK$7,674,000) BRTEE11,25500087C (ZE—=4F : 7,674,000
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans, as further BIL) N EREREERITERERNIE

detailed in note 28 to the financial statements. & B BRI SRR 285 -
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1. MEWCHE 5 Rk

Group
=

2014 2013

—T-mFE —FT—=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

THET TET

Trade receivables FEUWE SR 29,089 184,402
Impairment SR - (2,653)

29,089 181,749

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are on credit with
credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days (2013: 30 to 90 days),
depending on a number of factors including trade practices,
collection history and location of customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are

reviewed regularly by senior management.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provision,

is as follows:

Within 90 days
91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

NTER

h+—=—8/A\+H
—BN\t—=Z2=ZFA~TEH 1,518 936
BB=a/~ThH

AEBHBTHERP ZEEHRB0E0KT
Z(ZE—=F :30890K) RTESHE
B BERWRZEEEREPZAEERE
mE - BREFHEREERSE - A5H
HRWBIM R EFRZNET  WRE
EEZEHEHFAUNSEREEERR - BEHN
HERTEHBRRREREEELERN -

RI|BEBR - BREFRFRBEERBEHL
kR B R 2 Bl AT A T

Group
&E

2014 2013
—B-mE —T—=F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
TET TR
25,840 175,720
1,580 4,850

151 223

29,089 181,749
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21. Trade Receivables (continued)

The movements in impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

R 5 ik (78

FEWE ZRFOREZ SN

Group
&

2014 2013
—B-mE  —T-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
TET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 2,653 2,556
Impairment losses recognised BHERREREE 1,280 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT (3,901) -
Exchange realignment PE H %L (32) 97
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H = 2,653

As at 31 December 2013, included in the above provision for
impairment of trade receivables was a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of HK$2,653,000 with carrying
amounts before provision of HK$2,653,000. The individually
impaired trade receivables related to customers that were in

financial difficulties.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

RZZE—=ZF+=-A=+—H  L#iER
ESRFBEREANRESHENBRERKE S
BR I 2,653,000/8 7T - EBERIBREER
2,653,000/ 7T © {E BB E W E 5 IRk B
PRI REE s KRB -

RIE R 5 88 SR E RBE Z FEME 5 BRK
ZIRE DT

Group

&5
2014

—F-NE
HKS$’000

Within 90 days t+HRA
91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

h+—=2—Fa/\+H
—BNAtT—ZEZE=ZB~TEH 1,216 726
BiB=Aa,"1THxaH

FTERT

26,367 178,812
1,355 2,015

151 196

29,089 181,749
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Trade Receivables (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due from
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$1,025,000
(2013: Nil), which arose from the sales of air-tickets and are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the major

customers of the Group.

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade receivables with
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$12,179,000 were pledged
as security for the Group’s bank loans, as further detailed in note

28 to the financial statements.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables

21.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZE—MMFE+—-A=+—H

WEWE B Rk (A&

REMMABENERER T EAXESETP
BRE - RELOPAWEOLE -

BHEMERIRE R YR T AR B A RAF
FECHENETBELEPAR - RIBBEL
> ARRIEERABANE BEHIELRK
BERE REAREEERYEEAEEME
B ARRBAIAZ U E -

AEERKE SERPBIERK—FHER
a) FE 42 A% B BR 3R I 1,025,000 0 (ZFE— =
F:8) DHRBEHEEMEATIRET
REBFERFP ZEBUEERRIM -

N—E—=F+-"A=1+—0 ~EEER
EF{E12,179,00078 LA FEE 5 IR KA ER
SEIRTEREROERR - BEFBERH
TR 28l ©

Eﬁﬁﬁ‘@ﬁ&ﬁ%@%

A

Company
AT

2014 2013
—E-NF —ET—=F
HKS$°000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
THT FAETT FHET FHT
Prepayments i 308 1,443 - 433 .
Deposits and other receivables 3% & E 4th UK 3,772 49,666 2,227 —
5,218 49,666 2,660 -

Bt EEW RBAITARBE o Ll EERATE
B2 & BE E BT BN R 10 A0 B 2 FRIR
HAR -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.



158 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED X JB5 v B ¥ Bt A B 2 ¥

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i A B AR M R

31 December2014 —ZE—MFE+—-A=+—H

22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s deposits and other
receivables with a carrying amount of HK$758,000 (2013:
HK$767,000) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank

loans, as further detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, included in other receivables was
an amount due from a former subsidiary of the Group of
HK$14,676,000, which bore interest at 8% per annum and was
repayable in September 2014 as mutually agreed by both parties.
The amount was included in the subsidiaries disposed pursuant

to the Disposal during the year.

23. Financial Assets At Fair Value
Through Profit Or Loss

Listed equity investments, at market value:

Hong Kong a5

ERBRAERE

22. FHAFSRIE - 4 B 3 At B W

K (&

R-ZE—NME+-_F=+—H AEBERH
B 47580008 70 (ZZT—=%F : 767,000/ 7T )
WiEe R HE MUK AEREBRITERIE
REER R - BRAEFFER I BREM F285F

;)lT_o

R-E—=F+-_FA=+—H  EMEKX
B 5 FE WU 5 B BT B /88 2 B 5K 18 14,676,000
L BREFRERFF RGBT R T —
MENAER - ZeBTAFRRELES
BHENMHBARINA -

23. A FERB R AR Z &
&
Group
%E
2014 2013
—ET—=F
HK$°000
FET

—E-meE
HKS$’000
T

A

11,756 40916

The above financial assets at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were
classified as held for trading.

24. Advances to Non-Controlling
Shareholders of Subsidiaries

The advances to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of
repayment. The advances were included in the subsidiaries

disposed pursuant to the Disposal during the year.

RZB-—MER-F—=FF+ZA="1—
A UEemMEESBRFHERERS

24 1 B Jag 2w 2 BB B R Rk

B A RIHE R R BN R EER - 28
FORBREIEERE - BFFHAFAREBELE
EHRHENMBARA
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Cash and Bank Balances and
Pledged Bank Deposits

wr o BB R M R
31 December2014 —ZE—MMFE+—-A=+—H

25. Bl K SRAT &5 g Kk G 6R
T3k

Group Company
& NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ENOFE_FT-—FE-NF-_FT—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
WeE  F&x FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances IRE MIRTTHEER 56,935 34,229 48,229 S
Time deposits FEHEIFI - 3,250 - -
56,935 37,479 48,229 S
Less: Pledged time deposits for g : &3R7T @& VB I AY
banking facilities TFHITF 28 - (3,250) - -
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBeZE(MEIER 56,935 34,229 48,229 S

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$1,494,000 (2013: HK$20,849,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMSB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks

with no recent history of default.

RBERR AEEBUAARE [ARKE])
FHEZIRE MIRTTHEHRA1,4940008 7T (ZF
— =5 1208490008 7T) e AR AA B
R EA S - BRI (PR IMEEEE
Bl R 450E - EERMNEERRT)  HETAN
SEFRBRELETINEER ZRITIHEAR
AR AEME -

BRBIT2 RS ERNRTE BFERAERT
BARHE - BRI AEEAURLNBHNE
S EEERE-AS=EATRE - BRR
0 EITE SRR A8, o SRITRE A REEITE
ST B R T B HIY MR 1R R R 1T
-
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26.

27.

Trade Payables 26.

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

WEAT BT 50 Bk

R|BEMR - BFNEZRAREERALZ
FRie DTN ¢

2013
—E-=F

HK$'000

T

Within 90 days NTHR 34,762 93,113
91 to 180 days N+—Z—EAN\+H 69 265
181 to 365 days —BNt—E=A~tHH 28 608
Over 365 days BBE=athaH 30 1,001
34,889 94,987

Included in the trade payable are trade payables of
HK$28,223,000 (2013: Nil) due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary which are repayable within 30 days,
which represents similar credit terms to those offered by the

non-controlling shareholder to their major customers.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 15 to 90 days terms. (2013: 15 to 90 days)

JE B SRR B IR — R B A R IEE
MR 3R 2 FE & 5 BR 7028,223,000/8 T (=&
—=F:8) RIEERBRRLETEIER
P2 BUEEBRRR0RAER -

JERE SERL NGB B —RRISEOKR
TT—ZF 1 1SB0K) NEE -

Y 2
Other Payables and Accruals 27. HABRERT 3k X HEH £
Group Company
] A

2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mE —F-=F —B-NF —FT-=F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT THETT FERT T
Other payables HUbEAR 2,257 15,320 - 61
Accruals st ER 3,307 45,265 868 -
5,564 60,585 868 61

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

term of three months (2013: three months).

HENZRDRE  EFHER A=A
—E—=F: =Zf@A) -
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28. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other 28. [t B 8R47 S H b f 3k
Borrowings

2014
—E-NmEF
Effective Effective
interest Interest
rate
(%)  Maturity HK$000 (%, Maturity HK$'000
BIRA=
(%) FEA TER (%) 31 H TET
Current ME
Bank overdrafts BITEX
— unsecured — A - - - 5.8 Ondemand 991
REX
Bank loans RITER
— unsecured — EIA - - - 22 2014 10,000
—ZT-mEF
Bank loans RITER
— secured — HiEH 6.4-7.2 2015 7,566 2272 2014 18,025
“EZ-If it Sz
Other borrowings HibER 7 On demand 8,028 7 Ondemand 8,403
REX REX
15,594 37419
Group
L]
2014 2013
—E-NFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Analysed into: ST
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within — RN B E R E I
one year or on demand RITEZ R EYL 7,566 29,016
Other borrowings repayable on demand FREURIEE &2 HAREER 8,028 8,403

15,594 37,419
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28.

29.

—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

Interest-Bearing Bank and Other
Borrowings (continued)

Notes:
(a) Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by:

(i) a pledge of certain of the Group's
inventories totalling HK$11,255,000 (2013:
HKS$7,674,000) (note 20);

(ii) a pledge of certain of the Group’s other
receivables totalling HK$758,000 (2013:
HK$767,000) (note 22);

(i)  a pledge of certain of the Group’s trade
receivables totalling HK$12,179,000 as at 31
December 2013 (note 21); and

(iv)  a pledge of certain of the Group’s time
deposits amounting to HK$3,250,000 as at 31
December 2013 (note 25).

(b) All borrowings are denominated in RMB. In the prior
year, except for bank loans with an aggregate amount of
HK$21,342,000 which was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, all other borrowings were in RMB.

Advances From Shareholders

At 31 December 2013, except for the amounts of
HK$60,837,000 which were interest-bearing at the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate per annum and were not repayable within
12 months from 31 December 2013, the remaining advances
from shareholders were unsecured, interest-free and had no
fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the
amounts as at 31 December 2013 were not repayable within 12
months from 31 December 2013 and were therefore shown in
the statement of financial position as non-current liabilities. The
advances from shareholders were included in the subsidiaries

disposed pursuant to the Disposal during the year (note 34).

28.

29.

Wi 2 SR AT Je oAl AR sk (A8

BI5E
(a) NE@MIHRITRERA A TEER -
(i) R B 48 FE A11,255,00008 70 (—ZF —

= 176740008 70) 2B THFEE
R (MIsE20)

(ii) N [E A FE 75800008 T (T E—=
F 1 76700078 70) 2 & T H At FEUGK
EH R (Bf5E22) 5

(iii) rEBRZ_E—=F+=ZA=+—
S %ﬁ%lzw%oo?’éiZ%%ﬁHﬂl
B SRR (FsE21)

(iv) REBR-_T—=ZF+-F=+—
H 4258 532500008 L 2 & T EHE
SRYEHEAF (FRE25) ©

(b) FTEEFHAUAREHE RE—FEF B
HAEE 5521,342,00008 7T Z SR1TE IAB TTEHE
O BB ERAARERE -

B SR Bk

RZZTE—=F+ZRA=+—H ' $60837,000
BITHNSEUBTLRERFHNERFERT
AR —_E—=F+-_A=+—HiEEsT @A
BRI - FISBREBHAERR 28K
REETEENY BEFERAN T —=F+
AT HZERBETEEBZZE—=F1+
Z“A=+—BEFrnERRER - Bt E
BARREZRIAERBEE - REBFETA
FARBEEEEHENMWBE AR A (M5E
34) °
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Deferred Tax 30. EIERLIH
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the ATIEE AR ASELERIBEE

following items:

Group Company
L N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NE T —FE-NE-_T—=F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FHT AT

Taxlosses B 6,062 187,047 5,079 5,079
The tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately LA 960620008 T (= & — = :
HK$6,062,000 (2013: HK$180,971,000) are available 1809710003 7T) B &1 B & ) B 7% /65 48 7] A
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the RER IR ESE MBI AT 28K
companies in which the losses arose. In the prior year, the Group JERBHEM RE—FF KEBITEY
also had tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately 6,076,00076 TR B B KPE 2 BRI E1E - #5
HK$6,076,000 that would expire in one to five years for R—EHERDE AR R R ERR S
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have Floe HREBESEN R AE R S AFERTEF
not been recognised in respect of these losses as in the opinion Wiy FaiTEE - R EERI A EHERA
of the directors, it is not considered probable that taxable profits EERIBEE °

will be available against which the above items can be utilised.
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30.

—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

Deferred Tax (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The
Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$57,000 at
31 December 2014 (2013: HK$72,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment

of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

30.

ERERLIE (42)

BEFEPEMERE  EPBEKBERIA
NP E R ERIINEREETRRE AR
W0%TEFF - ZRER_TZENF—HA—
BRAEY  @ERAR_TTLF+A=*+—

BARKEAR - MR EE 2 ADEEER
B B ARE 2 BB B ek - RIA RAEIE

ZTEIMMB R o« REB ZE MR Q%K
10% ° At —TEN\F—- A - BEELDN
ER| - AEBEARN P EAERL B A
BIFT Ik B B BN FRFORR

RZE—WF+—A=+—H TERLE
e N 3 avard S = PNGIPEE S EabiE ks
B AR R BT A BN ERIELESE -
EERAEZEMB R TRAIBER A R AR
DIREBEAN R _FT—NF+=—A=+—
H - BRPEAREWE AR ZIEERERE
RELEHRBEEMEANEREEZEENR
e EEF DO Bs7008 T (ZT—ZF

72,0007 7T ) ©

AR B A BRIk 3 2 B
%o

BE SR B
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Share Capital 31. A
Shares gl
2014 2013
—E-mFE —_T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Authorised: VETE
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000% & i%
HK$0.025 each E{E0.0258 7T 2 LR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
1,823,401,376 ordinary shares of 1,823,401,376 1% T A%
HK$0.025 each H{E0.0258 T 2 B 45,584 45,584

32. Ji A
ARFR-FE-4FHA=+—BRA0E

Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 31 May
2002 (the 2002 Share Option Scheme”) was terminated on $
June 2012. Thereafter, no further options will be granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme but the subsisting share options
granted thereunder prior to its termination shall continue to be
valid and exercisable pursuant to the terms of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 June
2012, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the 2012 Share Option
Scheme”) which became effective on 11 June 2012. Under the
2012 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the Company’s
shares subject to the terms and conditions as stipulated therein.
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Share
Options Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10

years commencing on the date on which it became effective.

rEstal ([ ET_FBEREE)D Een
“E-_FRNARBRIE - 1R - BERE
“RE_FREREFEE - SR EBRE
BEREBEEERHNZRA R ABHY 2 BT
B AR - T — FRRE B 2 &
BATHE

RZZE——FXARABRITHARFRER
FRE L RNRTREA AR AR E
HE (2T ——FERESE]) - TR =
T ——FARNATBHRBRER - BE-F—=
FRKETS ARBESA UIRRESR
EMERRGHERELERETESERATI
REANBRRG o BRIEWEHIER - BRI
TR - FERE AR ER AR E
WA o
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—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

32. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The directors and employees of the Group are entitled to
participate in share option schemes operated by the Company.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are as follows:

(i) 20
(a)

(b)

02 Share Option Scheme

Purpose of the 2002 Share Option

Scheme

In order to provide incentives or rewards to
the participants for their contribution to the
Group and to enable the Group to attract and
retain employees of appropriate qualifications
and with necessary experience to work for the
Group and any entity in which any member of
the Group holds equity interests (the “Invested
Entity”), the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme at the annual general meeting

held on 31 May 2002.

Participants of the 2002 Share

Option Scheme

According to the 2002 Share Option Scheme,
the board may, at its discretion, grant options
to any person belonging to any of the following

classes of participants to subscribe for shares:

(i) any executive director, employee or
proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or

substantial shareholder;

(ii) any non-executive director (including
any independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or substantial

shareholder;

(ii)  any individual for the time being
seconded to work for any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or

substantial shareholder;

32. WhIHERHH (&)
AEE 2 EFRESHEMERANANE

e 2 B AT &

T

AR ERAERT BV FIT

(i) T AR BRI

(a)

(b)

CEFE AR A
H 19

BT RS RENREEPEL
B REA A 2 83 52 R B =k
BERE) - Y fR (AR R KRB
BRABEEEAREMIE TIEL
B2 IEE MARKE N ARRE
DA UNCIES YN A s ]
%%U&ﬁﬁﬁblﬁ ZN

7&%Ff$§f¢£ﬂz
+ TZBRFBFAE L
m&%m_zz_E%%%ﬁ

El

DFEFE AR
EY
RE-_TT_FEREE
EFeBERTERNATA

Pl 2 HaE 2 (E ] A+ BERRHE A
Y b\ﬁﬁHX {ﬁ :

al # 2

(i) AKEBEFEMRKERFIK
AR ERBEREER
R2EMRAITESE - B
B #AEE (Twm2
Bk 3RS

i) AEEFEMRKEQRK
ERREMBEREBR
RZ2EMERITES
(BIEEME L IEBTT
EE):

(i) FAEHFRETRNEERE
A B ARl A RIEE
BEXIETERRIEZ
AT
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b)  Participants of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or
substantial shareholder or any holder
of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity or
substantial shareholder;

any business partner, consultant or
contractor of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or substantial

shareholder;

any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or substantial shareholder;

any customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity or substantial

shareholder;

any person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or substantial

shareholder; and

any company wholly-owned by one or
more persons belonging to any of the

above classes of participants.

31 December 2014

A A B Ak M

—E-NFE+_-_A=+—H

32. JMBCHERTE (&)
CRF AR BB (2

(i)

(b)

CEE R A 2
2 (&)

(iv) AEBEEFAKE AR
EARE BB T ER
RZBRBA KB
DR WNCIERROE - ¥
BRERBRREITZ2ME
ARESRBA

(v) AEBEFKERAK
EAIEERBESIETER
RZEBBMY - BRI
HER

(vi) ANEBEFBKERQFK
EARERBL T ER
RZEAE IR HE
fEm

REE (IR E KB
FETERRZ2AME
I=E

(vii)

A AL EEAI KB A A
HEIRERIBR TR
PRERIRHLATE  FEE K
H 90 2 5= SR AE ] 7
A B BREHEAM
AR 75 2 (A A £ 3
m R

(viii)

(ix) EH
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(1)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Total number of shares available
for issue under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted shall not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the 2002 Share Option Scheme,
i.e.atotal of 182,340,137.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

No participant shall be granted an option if the
total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12 month
period up to and including the date of grant
to such participant would exceed in aggregate
1% of the shares for the time being in issue
unless the proposed grant has been approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with the proposed grantee and his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)

abstaining from voting,

Period within which the shares
must be taken up under an option

The Board may at its absolute discretion
determine the period during which a share
option may be exercised, such period should
expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant. The Board may also impose restrictions
on the exercise of a share option during the

period a share option may be exercised.

32. WhIHERHH (&)
CRFARM BT E ()

(1)

(c)

(d)

fe)

R L _4F J IR it
B BT A

B 2 AR R O] 3R B8 2 IR () 2k
BExa T N SHBA—ZSET _F8
k%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&*aa%ﬁk
9 210% + Bl& $£182,340,137/%
B o

gzgﬁﬁ%W%§%ﬁi

MREER TEBL2EEER

(BFEZH) IHEA 1218 A HERE
WE R T & 2 BRE
(BEETFE - - BEEkmE
T AR RE) BT mETT
Mg TFET RN BEEER
EEREETRMDI% - AIREME
R 2 EE R DA BB -

BRIEREEZCRBRERSE
ARABPERIAE - EEZ AR
AREBEA (EER ETR
AI) BRULAREIRE o

N

JH R 95 W I E i I e 1
Hj IR
Exer2RRBRERRE
AITTEMHIR - X HIRZAR
REBRkEBSMEFTEB T
FoBEFENMARBRENTT
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Minimum period, if any, for
which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

There is no specific requirement under the
2002 Share Option Scheme that an option
must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised, but the terms of the 2002
Share Option Scheme provide that the board
of the Company has the discretion to impose
a minimum period at the time of grant of any

particular option.

Amount payable upon acceptance
of the option and the period
within which payment must be
made

An amount of HK$1 for each lot of share
options granted is payable upon acceptance
of the options within 5 business days from the

date of offer of the option.

Basis of determining the exercise
price of options

The exercise price is determined by the board
of the Company, and shall be at least the higher
of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of offer of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the Company’s shares.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—-H=+—H

32. JMBCHERTE (&)
(i) ZFFAERBHEGE (F)

(f]  JERRERE AT 1718 HiT 6 1
HyRITHIRR (I F)

BE_ZSTE-_FERETS -
WHERENERENEZ DR
ERXBRBAAIITEZRFER
T BT _FERETE
ZIEFHE - AREEEEA
R A E AR ER IS
M AN _E PR & o

(g) AV PE IR ] 2 BT R
kg e

B AN R R AR
hEERBAAESR  SHERK
ERBIS B TTIER(E -

(h)  JEHERELT 8 19 2 i F i

ﬂﬁ S HEHARAEETEE
ﬁT SERTISEZ &
CHREEEREE B F
ﬁx%tﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ$
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FTE BmE RS ARQ R
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i)  Remaining life of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on 28 June

2002 and was terminated on S June 2012.

The movements of the share options
outstanding under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme of the Company during the year are as

follows:

32. WhIHERHH (&)

(i) ZFFAAMBREGE (F
(i) ZFE AR B
<=

—ETFHEREFEH=-Z
T-FRNAZTN\BHRBAEX
+E . WERZE——FXA
AHEKL -

FARARR =TT FRAME
RTEITET M ARITEE 2 R R 2
ZEHMT

2014
—E-mEF
Weighted

average

2013
—E—=F

Weighted

Number of average Number of

exercise price
IAE¥33
TfEfE
HKS per share
FRET

options
iy
#H
’000

T4

exercise price
INFEF 15
1128
HKS per share
BRET

options
BB
A
'000

iz

At 1 January 2014 WZZE—NF—H—H 2 92,000 2 92,000
Cancelled T8 - (92,000) - -
31 December 2014 —E—NFE

+=ZA=1+—8 - - 2 92,000
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued) . IR REEHE (2)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) ZZFRFTAEBRESE (2)
The movement of the share options outstanding under REE _ T _FRRETEIETE
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year are as RITE 2 BBRREESWOT -
follows:

Number of share options
BRIERE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat  Granted Exercised  Lapsed  Cancelled asat3l  Dateof grant of Exercise period of Exercise
Name or category 28AL2 1 January during ~ during  during during December share options share options price per
of participants HEaER 014 theyear theyear theyear theyear 2014 (DD/MM/YYYY) (DD/MM/YYYY) ~ share HKS
mE
il
AT

(Note3)

Directors £

Cheung Choi Ngor RER 6000000 - - - (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2008-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - - (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2009-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - - (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2010-17/09/2017 200

Richard Howard Gorges  Richard Howerd Gorges 6000000 - - - (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2008-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - - (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2009-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - - (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2010-17/09/2017 200

Ng Yok Mui Jessica E4:ES 6000000 - - - (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2008-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - = (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2009-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - = (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2010-17/09/2017 200

N Yuk Fung Peter Ey il 6000000 - - = (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2008-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - = (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2009-17/09/2017 200
6000000 - - = (6000000) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2010-17/09/2017 200

Sub-total gt 72,000000 - - - (72000000) -

Others 2

Inaggregate @ 673333 - - - (6733333) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2008-17/09/2017 200
6733333 - - - (673338) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2009-17/09/2017 200
6,733,334 - - - (67333) - 18/09/2007 18/09/2010-17/09/2017 200

Sub-total It 20200000 - - - (20200000) -

Total Pk 92200000 - - ~ (92200000) -
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(1)

2002

Notes:

(1)

3)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

All share options granted are subject to a vesting
period and become exercisable in whole or in part in

the following manner:

From the date of grant of share options

HERER L AR

Within 12 months

TEAR

13th month-24th month
FE+=F=_+mMEAR

25th month-36th month
E_+REE=T/XEA
37th month-120th month
E=T+tZE=E-—BH_-1TEA

The subscription price of the share options is subject
to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues,
or other alteration in the capital structure of the

Company.

On 30 April 2014, all outstanding share options
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme were
voluntarily agreed by the grantees to be cancelled,
no share-based compensation expenses arose from
the cancellation and the corresponding share option
reserve of HK$4,069,000 was transferred to the

retained earnings during the year.

32. W MchEnt# (42)
(i) ZFFAERBREGE (F)

Mo

(

)

©)

AEREZBREOREEHRR
K AZ O A2 WA TTE -

Exercisable
percentage

%
ATEESL
%

Nil
4=

not more than 33 13
PEH33

not more than 66
TZ 1066

100

100

BREZBRBERHBRRAKET
AR BB AN ZRHE 1F B E A B 5 A
AT IAGHEE ©

R-ZZE—WNFMA=+H —ZF
ZEFERENETE2BERITEZ
BRECARABBERERN &
HIWAEERDTRBERSL - 8
JE 7 B PR (2 854,069,00078 TT A 4 A
SRR
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

No share option have been granted or exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2014. No share option expense was
recognised during the two years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no share
options outstanding under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

(ii) 2012 Share Option Scheme

(a)  Purpose of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme

In order to provide incentives or rewards to
the participants for their contribution to the
Group and to enable the Group to attract and
retain employees of appropriate qualifications
and with necessary experience to work for the
Group and any Invested Entity, the shareholders
of the Company approved the adoption of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme at the annual
general meeting held on 5 June 2012.

A A B Ak M
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)
(ii) 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b)  Participants of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme

According to the 2012 Share Option Scheme,

the board may, at its discretion, grant share

options to any person belonging to any of the

following classes of participants to subscribe for

shares:

M)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

any executive director, employee or
proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or

substantial shareholder;

any non-executive director (including
any independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or substantial

shareholder;

any individual for the time being
seconded to work for any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or

substantial shareholder;

any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or
substantial shareholder or any holder
of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity or
substantial shareholder;

any business partner, agent, consultant,
contractor or representative of any
member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or substantial shareholder;

32. WERHEGTHE (42

(ii) ZF—FEHRREE® (&
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(b)

(ii)
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(1)

(b)

2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)
Participants of the 2012 Share

Option Scheme (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or substantial shareholder;

any customer of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or
substantial shareholder;

any person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or substantial

shareholder;

any other group or classes of
participants from time to time
determined by the directors as having
contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of any
member of the Group (inducing any
discretionary object of a participant
which is a discretionary trust); and

any company wholly owned by one or
more persons belonging to any of the
above classes of participants.

31 December 2014

A A B Ak M
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)
2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(1)

(c)

(d)

Total number of shares available
for issue under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted shall not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the 2012 Share Option Scheme,
i.e. atotal of 182,340,137.

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of
shares available for issue pursuant to the grant
of further share options under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme was 182,340,137, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

No participant shall be granted an option if the
total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12 month
period up to and including the date of grant
to such participant would exceed in aggregate
1% of the shares for the time being in issue
unless the proposed grant has been approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with the proposed grantee and his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)

abstaining from voting,

32. BEMERESHE] (42)
(ii) —=&F—

[c) MEFEZF—
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)
(ii) 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Period within which the shares

must be taken up under an option

The Board may at its absolute discretion
determine the period during which a share
option may be exercised, such period should
expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant. The Board may also impose restrictions
on the exercise of a share option during the

period a share option may be exercised.

Minimum period, if any, for
which an option must be held

before it can be exercised

There is no specific requirement under the
2012 Share Option Scheme that an option
must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised, but the terms of the 2012
Share Option Scheme provide that the board
of the Company has the discretion to impose
a minimum period at the time of grant of any

particular option.

Amount payable upon acceptance
of the option and the period
within which payment must be

made

An amount of HK$1 for each lot of share
options granted is payable upon acceptance
of the options within 28 days from the date of
offer of the option.

31 December 2014

A A B Ak M
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32. Share Option Schemes (continued)
2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(1)

(h)

(1)

Basis of determining the exercise

price of options

The exercise price is determined by the board
of the Company, and shall be at least the higher
of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of offer of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of grant; and (ii) the

nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Remaining life of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme

Subject to early termination of the 2012
Share Option Scheme pursuant to the terms
thereof, the 2012 Share Option Scheme will
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which it became
effective on 11 June 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
no share option has been granted, exercised or
cancelled under the 2012 Share Option Scheme

since its adoption.
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33. Reserves

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 85 of the financial statements.

31 December 2014

A A B Ak M

—F-mEt=A=t+-A

33. filifh

(a)

414

AR EEREE RIBE Y RER
HE BRI R B BRE Ess B
AEREBER -

Company b) A
Retained
Share Share profits/
premium option (accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
REBEF
RiVEEE BRERE (RitE#R) R
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TR Tz THET
At 1 January 2013 R-F—=F—H—H 54416 4,069 43,946 102,431
Total comprehensive REEXEEBREASE
loss for the year - - (78) (78)
At 31 December 2013 and EQ —=F+=-A=+-H
1 January 2014 “E-WFE-A—H 54416 4,069 43,868 102,353
Total comprehensive $$ FQ%E BBl
loss for the year - - (57,040) (57,040)
Reduction of share premium BsEmD (15519) - 15,519 -
Cancellation of share options TR (WiE20)3)
(note 32()(3)) - (4069) 4069 -
Special dividend (note 12) MIJ B8 (Hitiz) - - (63454) (63454)
At 31 December 2014 ZE-UEFZA=+—H 38,897 - (57,038) (18141)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
represent the share premium account and retained
profits. Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or
dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Accordingly,
the Company did not have any reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2014
(2013: HK$98,284,000).

RAR A RFERERD SERR
REHEF - RIBFFASHESDAE (K
BE]) B0E - AR AIRD EHE A
DIRSR BAARE - BARBAKE
AU R A R ERE D RS E&
ARBBRENIHER—BERB
RREBHZERS - Bl R=Z—MN
F+-A=+—RHARQ TE&ﬁT
HAORTFREZHE (ZF—=
98,284,000/ 7T ) °
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34.

Disposal of Subsidiaries 34. HWEHE AT

On 30 April 2014, the Company and Tremendous entered into NR-_ZE—WUEFEMNWA=+H' AN aH
the Disposal Agreement (as defined in the Circular), pursuant Tremendousz] v/ HEW = (FXABX) &
to which the Company agreed to sell and Tremendous agreed to It - AR EE HE M Tremendous[A B B &
purchase the entire issued share capital of South China (BVI), South China (BVI) 2 £8 2 3 1THZN » South China
which will hold the Disposal Group after the Reorganisation (as BVDEREL (TERBXR) BEAHESE
defined in the Circular). On 29 August 2014, at an extraordinary o ANFIFEAR—_E—MENA-+1H
general meeting, the Disposal Agreement was approved by BUOOzREFIRE EHELERZ - &R
the shareholders of the Company and the transaction was SER-_ZE—NEALANBETHK - HERE
completed on 4 September 2014. The disposal consideration T5AIR 95,466,000 7T 2 F AR TR E B X
was in the form of cash of HK$95,466,000 which was paid at ff o

the completion date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the HEEBERHERBRZAHANIEEREBEY
Disposal Group as at the date of disposal were as follows: NFEEHRIOT

2014
—E-mf

HK$’000
TR

Net assets disposed of: T EEEFE -
Property, plant and equipment Y E NS 14 7,127
Investment properties Tﬁ ’ﬁ CF@ % 1S 38,900
Available-for-sale financial assets AftrEemMEE 473
Other non-current assets ﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁ@]:ﬁ% 28,882
Goodwill HEE 19 2,994
Inventories & 168
Trade receivables eI E SR RN 209,642
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ENFIE  EZe Kk
FLth &R 41,697
Advances to non-controlling shareholders BEEEENGIE =235
of subsidiaries A B #A TR 1,820
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 15,572
Cash and bank balances Be MIR1T4E R 62,976
Trade payables FEE 5 AR R (148,477)
Other payables and accruals Hin e R fEETE A (34,317)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITHE R (59,931)
Tax payable FESRIE (3,138)
Advances from shareholders A% SR #A TR (64,463)
99,925
Non-controlling interest IEVE IR o (13,590)
Net assets attributable to owners of the HE 2 AR B HE AEMN
Company disposed of BEFE 86,335
Available-for-sale financial asset revaluation AHHESREESLFHE
reserve 17 (4,998)
Exchange fluctuation reserve E 3‘_— /BZ@JE% fﬁ (8;631)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMTB R AR 6 22,760
95,466
Satisfied by: LAT%IIE B A+ -
Cash B 95,466
Upon the completion of the disposal, PRC statutory reserve of HE R - P ELETE B 178,00008 7T E 8

HK$178,000 was transferred to the retained earnings. BT R EE T o
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31 December 2014

34.

Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

—F-mEt=A=t+-A

B M e A\ (A7)

ERLENBARZAE RS EEEER
NFEZAT

2014
—g-ng

HKS$’000
TAET

Cash consideration WERE 95,466
Cash and bank balances and pledged deposits ~ FT {155 2 38 & R IRTTAE 8 A K 2 IR 75K

disposed of (78,548)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEWBATIZIRE R

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries HeHXEBERAFEE 16,918

35. BARAME

Contingent Liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not

o -

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Group
xm

2014 2013

—T-ImFE —T—=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTHET FET

Guarantees given to banks AERTTIR (L IE(R
in connection with banking ABSE FHE AR Z
facilities granted to RITHRLE

subsidiaries - -

RImERR - BHEREKERBZHARE

Company

NI
2014
=t BE2
HKS$’000
TR

2013
—E—=4F
HK$'000
FET

- 186,450

At 31 December 2013, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by

the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$21,343,000.

Pledges of Assets 36. EEKH

Details of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 28 to

the financial statements.

N_ZE—=F+-A=+—8 ' BaARAMA
RITIREERZE TFHEB AR ZFEITRE R
#)7621,343,000/8 TTE B A ©

BRANASEEERR 2 RITERLBEZH
BN B R IRR M TS o
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37. Operating Lease Arrangements

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its retail stores and office properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these retail
stores are negotiated for terms of eight years (2013: eight years),
and those for office properties are for terms ranging from one to

five years (2013: one to five years).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

37.

REMA L

EREBA

AEBERBEERORFERETTE/EH
EBEFEYE - TEEHEORENE (=
T—=F:\F) MEFEVNEROLH
H—E2AFA EF (ZT—=F: —20F)-

RZE—NE+-ZA=+—0  KEHIEE
Al SEAE LR A T HIRR B B 2 R 3k
SREMASEENT

Group

S
2014 2013
—F—=F
HK$000
TATT

—F-NEF
HKS$’000
TR

Within one year —F R 3,401 9,866
In second to fifth years, inclusive —ERFRN (BIEEREWE) 7,240 20,587
10,641 30,453
38. Capital Commitments 38. BAKYE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note M b sEs7ail 7 A FRAYEIESN - RN

37 above, the Group had capital commitments contracted, but
not provided for in relation to acquisition of land in Mainland
China of approximately HK$3,619,000 at 31 December 2013.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have
any significant capital commitment (2013: Nil).

T—=F+-_A=+—H AEEBFBEEF
(30 R e Uk B8 £ 1B B BT 4B R B 1 2 B AR
% 53,619,000/ JT, ©

RIEIR - ARRABEMERNE RAME

) o
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39. BEALERS

39. Related Party Transactions

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in () BRUBHRZXEMLIFRZRS
these financial statements, the Group had the following AN RNEFERAREEEEEATHF T

25

transactions with related parties during the year:

2014 2013

—B-ME ZT=F

Nature of transaction X Z M E HKS$’000

it

HK$'000

THIT

Notes

izt

Companies in which ETFEEHE  Netproceeds from HEMEL

certain directors have BRERY air- tickets and travel R s AR AR A

beneficial interests* NI related services sold ﬁﬁ?%fﬁlﬁ}%%ﬁ (i) 376 269
Companies in which LETEEHEE  Rental expenses HeL

certain directors have BRHER Y

beneficial interests”” NG (i) 2,549 2,539
Companies in which certain % F 3E12 % Agent fee for air tickets  FTHE (A4 22 % Bk 2

non-controllingshareholders ~ J¥R#FEHEzs  and travel related HERGzRIEE

have beneficial interests”  #Ez5 7 AT service provided (i) 1,657
Companies in which certain #F JF #28 J i EManagement service fee  E32 75 &

non-controllingshareholders i 5 & 25 4 &1

have beneficial interests” 7 A &) (if) 390

Shareholders® e Interest expenses MEZH (iif) 2,025 2,897

* The directors of the Company are also the directors * ARRZZEEERKABERRZ
and/or substantial shareholders of the related BER/HEBRE -
companies.

** The related party transactions also constitute " ZEMEATRZIEX ETHRNE
connected transactions or continuing connected TAERMATENRER HAHERM
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing B o
Rules.

# The related party transactions also constitute # ZEBEALRSIVEX ETRAIE
exempted connected transactions or continuing TUAZFATHERCHERZ X
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of BEBERS °
the Listing Rules.

Notes: B

(i) These transactions were charged at prevailing market (i) WhERZSBRITHISERE
rates.

(ii) The management service fee was charged based on (ii) BRI BILERREE ZRAUER -
actual costs incurred.

(i) The interest expenses were charged at the Hong Kong (i) T' IBSZHTYRAREERE & ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ\lﬁ

dollar prime rate per annum on the outstanding balances
due to the shareholders.

ﬁ%LA/Emﬁifggiiﬁ RitE
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39. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Other transactions with related parties:

During the year, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interest in the Disposal Group. Further details
of the transaction are set out in note 34 to the financial

statements.
Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with related parties at the end
of the reporting period are included in notes 21, 24, 26

and 29 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key and senior management

personnel of the Group:

Certain directors are the key and senior management
personnel of the Group. Details of their remuneration

are disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

39. REANLZS (&

(b)

HEBEATZEMRZS

FRN AEEEHEEREEREZ
2R - X P 2 E— T HITERNY
R i34

BEALZ REEL

REEEIER - BEA T ZEHFIBE
PR BTSRRI 521 ~ 24 ~ 26829 o
AEBTENSHREEEBKXKE 2]
B -
ETEENAEEZFTEBLSHEE

EKE - EBEF BRI BRRM
AESIEE ©
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Financial Instruments by Category  40. #H &4/t T B

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial UTALESem T ERHEHRMNERE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014
Group 5E —E-IF

Financial assets SREE

Financial assets

at fair value Available-for-

through profit Loans and sale financial

or loss receivables assets
BAVERER BERK AEHE Total
ARZEREE N cREE e
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
TERT TR TET THERT

Available-for-sale Tk

financial assets SHEE - - 54,509 54,509
Trade receivables TEUE B IR - 29,089 - 29,089

Financial assets included in HUNERECER
prepayments, deposits and B4 K EoAth

other receivables JEW K2
SREE - 3,772 - 3,772
Financial assets at fair BN ERIER
value through profit or loss ANEZ &h&EE 11,756 - - 11,756
Cash and bank balances & RRITH R - 56,935 - 56,935

11,756 89,796 54,509 156,061
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40. Financial Instruments by Category 40. & /r4@ T H (&)

(continued)
Financial liabilities SRIaE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
RE R A BR
ZEBmERE
HK$000
FET
Trade payables TERTE FIERK 28,889
Financial liabilities included in S A EL A E T R R
other payables and accruals JEHER Z&AaE 5,564
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings [t B ERIT R Efh 2k 15,594
56,047
2013
Group 55 =%
Financial assets SREE

Financial assets

at fair value

through profit Available-for-

or loss sale financial

b /NN F ans 2 assets
BaRARZ es A E Total
TREE ERRENR TREE Fk]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TET FET FET

Available-for-sale Ak

financial assets SEhEE - - 48,566 48,566
Trade receivables JEYE 5 IR - 181,749 - 181,749

Financial assets included in 2+ AFEfTEIE
prepayments deposits and g B H M E

other receivables 52 EEEE - 49,666 - 49,666
Financial assets at fair value AN ERBEG

through profit or loss PN 40916 - - 40916
Advances to non-controlling [ fff & /2 7

shareholders of subsidiaries JEERE 15 B R - 1,878 - 1,878
Pledged bank deposits IR TER - 3,250 - 3,250
Cash and bank balances & RRITHE B - 34,229 - 34,229

40916 270,772 48,566 360,254
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40. Financial Instruments by Category 40. B Em T H (&

(continued)
Financial liabilities EREE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
1R S AN BR
ZEEasE
HK$000
THEIT
Trade payables TEATE 5 IEER 94,987
Financial liabilities included in A A FERTE R
other payables and accruals BB S AaE 60,585
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings [T 2 #R1T By Eofth {2k 37,419
Advances from shareholders Ji% B EK 62,438
255429
Company NF
Financial assets SREE

Loans and receivables

BERRERK
2014
—E-MF
HK$’000 HK$000
85 FHETT
Due from subsidiaries R NG e 4 -
Financial assets included in prepayments, - AFE{TFIE ~ #4485
deposits and other receivable HAth FE Ik 2 & 2,660 -
Bank balances RATHGER 48,229 S

50,460 N
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40. Financial Instruments by Category 40. & /r4@ T H (&)
(continued)

Financial liabilities SRIaE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

BBERAIR2EHMAE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TH#IT

Financial liabilities included in S LA 5 21
other payables and accruals [EFTER < &MAE 868 61
Due to subsidiaries JEASH BT 2 R ke 22,610 219

23,478 280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair Value and Fair Value
Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair value of cash and bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, balances with non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short

term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation policies and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial

reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate

the fair values:

The non-current portion of advances from shareholders was
not discounted as the discounting factors were considered by

management to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted

market prices.

At the end of each reporting period, the financial instruments
measured at fair value held by the Group were classified at level
1.

41.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—-H=+—H

el T HZ AP EEAFE
@ %

EREMRE MRITER  EHEBRTE
K R B R R FEERAR AR - BB S
BRAK - AEATANFUR - Re REMBYZ
TREE BNESERN  FEAEMENR
K e E A 2 &R A E AR SERIT R EAD
AR A HEREREERS - T2R2AN
ZETRTABREHME -

AEEHMBEERE MK HEEEES
BTAXFEFENBRREER - BHKE
HEABFEMHEREZZEGRSE - V&
BEAH UBHITERTANEEE
LEEHERANIEGAL2E - HEHRE
BB E R LAE - MEBRREERTE
ERZEQETTHRFEMBEEE  8F
MR o

TREENBBZATVENZIARBRR
57 (MIFRAHBRIIFE) BERIRH T2
ARZGEEARK

EHEAHERERA NIDDERRBRR

BRRBRZIERBEOARUE - AREEE
RRRRNTEM T RE -

EAERAREN A FEATBRHERER -

WEREEA - ARERENEATELE
NERTAFERE R -
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41.

42.

—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

Fair Value and Fair Value
Hierarchy of Financial Instruments
(continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2013: Nil).

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies

The Groupss principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, equity investments, and
cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with a
floating interest rate. The majority of the bank borrowings bear

interest at ﬂoating interest rates.

If there would be a general increase in the interest rates of net
debts obligations with floating interest rates by fifty basis points
(2013: fifty basis points), with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s profit before tax and retained profits would be
decreased by approximately HK$4,000 (2013: HK$449,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2014

41].

42.

Sl THRZ AP K
NVAERE R (2

FRReREEMERAGBEMNS R
HE—_RsAMEFBRA ?@#gET
ﬁﬁik%i@i@“_ﬂhﬁ( —=

FE) -

St s I i B R S BOR

AEBTESRMTABEMBRITREME
Ko BRAKRE B MRITFER - ELER
TEANEERMNER/ARELESSEES -
AEEASRAMERELEZENTRE

EREE  NNEKESERRENESHIK
rEEemTEMEEFZRBBENER
% ERRR - EERR - RBIERER M
AERER ZEFgERLBTEERSER
SREVBGR - BLan T o

A1 2, i
AEEFEHGTSIEEDER  TER

AEBHFEEBEEFERR - KEMHH
RITIERZ AT BRI EET S -

EEEBEEFENFE LR L A0EER
TE-=F 0EH) ERMBEHME SN
RETENELT  AEEREBEE_ZT—M
FTZA=T—BLEFENRBA RN &

1R 5 R R A £94.0008 70 (ZE— =4 ¢
449,000/ 7T ) ©
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Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB and
United States dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in operations in Mainland China. The directors
consider that the exchange rates of the Hong Kong dollar
against the United States dollar in the foreseeable future are
expected to be relatively stable and the appreciation in RMB
against the Hong Kong dollar is expected to be mild. There is
no significant exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates

and any related hedges.

The Group has certain investments in operations in Mainland
China, whose net assets are exposed to translation risk.
Management does not expect any material adverse impact
on the foreign exchange fluctuation, as expected and mild
appreciation in RMB will further benefit the Group’s net asset

position in Mainland China.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of

monetary assets and liabilities).

42.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—-H=+—H

B BR AT A B R

/1

2 S e it
AEETEREFERPERAELEXBIE
HRBINEHBHRAR  TER/ARELE
TEREN R o [EXRBRELEARKEER
5 HREEMBEBERNPEAERSE2F
BRE - EERRBILABRRERITZERER]
RAREGEHFREFAEMARELBTZIT
ER R o 1t 8 5 A M &% 8 B [
EITHRRE

AEBRPBRAENE TERREZFEE
EHRERR - EREY NEHINERDE
EEERERTNEE  REASAREEAN
HUR M THE R B = A = B i e B RBER)
BEMR

TRETEMEEMBESETEZHERT - K
SEBRBANEANNREHRAARBERZ
BEAIRENSNERE (HREBEEREA
BORFEZBE)
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42. Financial Risk Management 42, B R B AE B H R BR
Objectives and Policies (continued) (&)
Foreign currency risk (continued) [ . JE\ B (42)

Group
£E

Increase/ Increase/

Changein  (decrease)in  (decrease) in

foreign profit before tax equity*

currency rate R AR IRz
ER@s £ (Rd) & (8d)

% HK$’000 HK$’000

TR TR

2014 —E-—mE

If Hong Kong dollar weakens

against RMB T T A A R iE g5 S - 807
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against RMB T A A R kg g S = 807

Group
S
Change in Increase/ Increase/

foreign (decrease) in (decrease) in

currencyrate  profit before tax equity®
oS IR R 25
i,/ CGAb) 80/ )
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET

2013 —T—=

If Hong Kong dollar weakens

against RMB AT AREESS N - 4,957
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against RMB AT R A RS S - (4,957)

*

Excluding retained earnings N BERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group

does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial
assets, equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk is mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China by geographical location. The
Group’s credit risk exposure is spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. Hence, it has no significant

concentration of credit risk by a single debtor.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21

to the financial statements.

42.

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZFE—NF+—-H=+—H

%%ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

/l‘/ ~

i B B

AEBIEREERR N EERE 2F =TT HET
X5 e ?EZK%IZBZ” PASRIRIEEH#
TRBZEP » WARBEEZERF - It
Sh - REBERBEREBUGRIBREY - BAXE
S ERRERI AEKX o SR IFAE
AR EEN R EREZR S BRIFE
EEERIBEERNLE  BRAAEETS

u\IZI %'T_E\_E/Hﬂ °

AEBNHEMEHEE  BEREREMASS
TEIEH AR ESREE ?E"?TEWTE
BmARZBARE R EMERRZ EER
KEEMRSHTFELD - ﬁ’ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ/ﬁ&
ZEBNAZEFTAZERERR -

ABEUERE  AEENEERREIRE
REREMPEKRE - AEBNEERRY
’\%K‘EA%FQ%%T?%DEEE R ith2 B 7Rl

SREERBRRE—EBA
BRAKEKXAREE SRR 2 EERRK

E—TEBE  CRMBRERMELT
@ oo
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42.

—E-OF+-A=+—H

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance

between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

bank overdrafts, bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group
£H

42.

Less than

3 months

%gﬁ%)ﬁhl‘i‘i%ﬂ H 2 & BUR

i T P L

AEBERAERNAHE S S TAEEE
THERMNEAR ZTAZEESLRERTA
HeympEE (MEKE SRR Z2HA K
LRRAEEXRBGZEMRERE - AREF
HEEBBRRITES  |RITERREMM R

e

B #RBESREEREE L T -

RBEATORTRNK - AEBRARFR
BEMROEREBIHANT

2014
—E-0mEF
3to
less than

12 months Over

On demand PR Z@EAED 1 year Total

RER =EA R+=—@BA ®BB—F mE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

THET THET THET FTET THET

Trade payables TE(TE FREER 28,223 6,539 97 30 34,889
Financial liabilities included  Z A At [l {3k
in other payables and K EGTE 2

accruals SR EE 5,564 - - - 5,564

Interest-bearing bank and [ E3R1T &
other borrowings HAh &R 15,594 - - - 15,594
49,381 6,539 97 30 56,047
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Financial Risk Management 42.. %R B BE AR R BUR
Objectives and Policies (continued) F=]

Liquidity risk (continued) B Rk (E)

Group 2013

EH —E-=F

3to

Less than less than

3 months 12 months Over

On demand L Z@AEL 1 year Total

BEXR =BA R+@A ®BBE—F 4a=s

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000

FET FET FET FET TR

Trade payables TE(TE S IR 747 93,600 640 ~ 94,987
Financial liabilities included 2t A th [+ Kk
in other payables and K EEHEH 2

accruals LR EE 59,300 1,285 - - 60,585
Interest-bearing bank and it B 8RAT Kz

other borrowings HAM SR 9,394 20,352 7,673 - 37,419
Advances from

shareholders it R - - - 62,438 62,438

69,441 115,237 8313 62,438 255,429

Company 2014
YNE —ZT—F

3to
Less than less than
3 months 12 months Over

On demand PR Z@BED 1 year Total
RER =@EA R+t=ER BB—F B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T FHERT FTHERT FTHERT

Financial liabilities included  Z A -t JE{f

in other payables and P FEE
accruals BHz
R BEE 868 - - - S
Due to subsidiaries JEA=F Bt & 2
2HIg 22,610 - - = 22,610

23,478 - - - 23,478
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42. Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Company
NG]

On demand
REXK
HK$°000
FAETT

Financial liabilities included &+ A Efb fE S X

42, T R B s B H AR M BUR

(#)
B b (E)

Less than less than

3 months 12 months
PR Z@EAED 1 year Total
@A R+@EA HBiE—F FEE]
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000

THET THETT THETT TAET

in other payables and LESTERZ
accruals SRIBE 61 - - - 61
Due to subsidiaries FERTE A A
RIH — — - 219 219
Guarantees given to banks  [A)ER7THE#E
in connection with ARSI
facilities granted FTHEBARZ
to subsidiaries RITRLE 21,343 - — — 21,343
21,404 - - 219 21,623

Equity price risk

The market equity indices for the following stock exchange, at
the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the
end of the reporting period, and their respective highest and

lowest points during the year were as follows:

31 December

High/low 31 December High/low

2014 2014 2013 2013
—E2E—E —EE—NF B B =

5/1& +-HA=+—H 5

25,631/ 23,306 24,112/

21,138 19,426

+=A=+—8
23,605

Hong Kong B

— Hang Seng Index — [BAIREN

JBe AR B A% R\ gk

N TR G ETISEENHRE AR &
TR 5 BT R & E A A i A A B (R AL 40
I
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Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based
on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
For the purpose of this analysis, for the available-for-sale equity
investments, the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for
factors such as impairment which might impact the statement of

profit or loss.

2014 —EmE

Investments listed in: &g

Hong Kong - Held-for—trading HH - FHIEEERE
— Available-for-sale — At

42.

investments tax

A A B Ak M

31 December2014 —ZE—MF+_-_A=+—H

I B AR

/1

AR A% R B ()

TRETERABREN A FESZE 0% (M
HMBERFIE IR ATARER
) MBRE - DERBEHROKEER
Beoplzaims  HRAHRLE ZBAR
B R BRI RN EREEEHE
FE NEFRAIHBEREKRTE 2R
BEFRZ

o

Carrying
amount of

equity

Change in

profit before Change in
equity*
WA R
ok
HKS$’000

TET

BRBE A1
A2 B
HKS$’000

FERx

BRAERE
AREE
HK$’000

TR

11,756 1,176 =
54,509 - 5,451

2013 F—=
Investments listed in: ERE
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading
— AR E

— Available-for-sale

& - FHFEERS

Carrying

amount of
equity

investments

BA®ZE
BREE
HK$'000
TAT

40916
48,105

Change in
profit before
tax

i |
HK$'000
FAET

4,092

Change in
equity”

Bt s

HK$'000
F#&T

4,811

* Excluding retained earnings

© o TREREER
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42.

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and maximise shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the two years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and bank balances.

Capital represents total equity. The gearing ratios as at the end

of the reporting period were as follows:

0. S5 W BB K B

(&

B H
AEEEASE Y TERELSATHIRES
SR BB DR E S BALE - UK
EEELRRIREREEE -

AEEEBEAEBUARRBOERR 2 &
BRHEEERBRFEMEEELRAE - K&
B ] LAB B M AR BR 3R B AR S BT AR AR
BAABREALE REEZT—NFEZ
T—=F+_A=t+—HLIMEFERN " &
BEAETEY B BRRSEILENRE -

AEBERAEARBLREEEN  EXR
B EREEFERAEREBEFRL
Ao BERFRRM BRIT MEMEFTRRE
FARTTHEBRRTE - EARRIRAEDARE © ]
FHRZERBBLRNOT

Group
£H

2014 2013

—B-mE —T=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET TET

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings  fff 8 #8177 B HoAth {7k 15,594 37,419
Less: Cash and bank balances ko IR R ERATREER (56,935) (34,229)

Net debt (BT 4E (41,341) 3,190

Capital B 129,479 214,003

Capital and net debt BR G FEE 88,138 217,193

Gearing ratio EARAELE N/A 1.5%

TE A
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Particulars of the Principal 43. EEMWEAF Z 51
Subsidiaries
RZZE—NMF+_A=+—0 ARAZE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2014 are as follows:

ZMBLRFEAT

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered share attributable to Principal
Name business capital the Company activities
RAFIEL
R/ MK BRTEER Ragsz
£ EXH / ERBA Bt TERH
Direct Indirect
E& L
Sleek City Limited ENARAT British Virgin Islands USs1 100% = Investment holding
EBARRES E RERK
Broad Vautage Limited ERERAHE British Virgin Islands USs1 100% = Investment holding
ABARRES E RERR

Worldunity Investments HHREER Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited N &b 10,0007 7T REER

King Link Investments BYREER Hong Kong HKS$100 - 8% Investment holding
Limited 1) i 10078 7T (2(013; 100%) RERR

—E_—
&+ 100%)

Nanjing South China HRREER The PRC/ RMBS,500,000 - 55.63% Tradingand
Baoging Jewellery Co, KREEHER Mainland China ARE5,5000007 (2013: 65.45%) manufacturing of
Ltd. (noteb) AR e/ (Z%-= jewellery

PEIRHE Foesasw) REEHREE

Four Seas Tours Limited MERTHER Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 65%  Sale of air-tickets and

NS B 30000007 72 (2013:100%)  other travel related
(Z2—=  services principally

E 1 100%) provided to corporate

clients (“Corporate

Travel Business’)

IZMEBER

RIMBEHER

At iR R 7

((BRRBEH])

South China (BVI) Limited ~ South China (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands US$10,000 - = Investment holding
(note ) (k) RBHRRES 10000 7T (2013: 100%) RERR

(z2-=

1 100%)
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43.

—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

Particulars of the Principal
Subsidiaries (continued)

Name

L

Hong Kong Four Seas
Tours Limited (note c)

Chongging Fortuna
Information Technology
Co, Ltd. (note b,c)

Four Seas Travel (BV1)
Limited (note ¢)

Glad Light Investment
Limited (note ¢)

(Greenearn Investments
Limited (note )

Jadeland Investment
Limited (note )

South China Information

Technology Development

Limited (note c)

ERNBRTH
ARDE (fie)

EREREA
EHE]IIND
(Fit3E,c)

Four Seas Travel (BVI)
Limited (PfizEc)

EREERR
) (M)

MEREER
) (HEEe)

(]

REREAR
(W)

South China Information

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

BRI/ ERE
EXH

Hong Kong
Bk

The PRC/
Mainland China

e/
PN

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong
5

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
&

Cayman Islands

Technology Development HEHS

Limited (fi5%c)

43. EHEWE AR Z G (&

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital

BRTEER
/ ERBA

HK$20,800,000
Ordinary
20,800,000/ 7T
LaR
HK$1,200,000
Non-voting
deferred (note )
1,200,000/ 7T
BRZIERT
fxfa (M)

RMB3,330,000
AR #33300007T

US$100
1003 7T

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

HKS2
VBT

HK$2
VAT

HKS1
BT

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
ARTELE
BAgs
AL

Direct Indirect

B [

(2013: 100%)
e

in
A

(Z2—=

£ 1 100%)

Principal
activities

TERH

Sale of air-tickets

and other
travel-related services
principally provided

to travel agents
(“Wholesale Travel
Business)
TEMRERR
RIENEZHE R
Atk RAES
(REHEER])
Information
technology related
business

EARHR
B
Investment holding

REER

Property investment

VESSE

Investment holding

REER

Property investment

ESE

Investment holding

REER
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43.

Particulars of the Principal

Subsidiaries (continued)

31 December 2014

—E-NFE+_-_A=+—H

43. FEWB AR ZHE (&

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered share attributable to Principal
Name business capital the Company activities
FARER
RY/ ERR BRITEER ey 33
&R EXHE / ERRAR ARl TEEH
Direct Indirect
E¥ B

Southchinanetcom (BVI)  Southchinanetcom (BVI)  British Virgin Islands USs1 - = Investment holding

Limited (note c) Limited (ffi7Ec) RERARRES 1T (2013: 100%) REER
(Z%-=
1 100%)
Splendid Enterprises Limited ~ Splendid Enterprises Limited  British Virgin Islands USs1 - = Investment holding
(note ) GED) FEARREE E (2013: 100% AR
(Z%-=
2 100%)
Super Giant Limited (note ¢)  Super Giant Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 - = Investment holding
GED) FBARRES E (2013: 100% REER
(Z%-=
2 100%)

Tek Lee Finance and EMNREER Hong Kong HK$287498,818 - = Investment holding
Tnvestment Corporation NERGED BE 287,498,818)%fll (2013: 100%) REER
Limited (note ) (Z%—=

F 1 100%)

Tianjin South China Real AEFERME The PRC/ RMB43,000,000 - - DPropertyinvestment
Estate Development Co. HBEER LT Mainland China AEE430000007T (2013: 51%) NERE
Ltd. (note b,c) (FzED, ¢) Mg/ (—E—=

B AR 2 51%)

Winfound Investments ZEIREER Hong Kong HK$2 - - Property investment

Limited (note c) ACIGED) &b iy (2013: 100%) ESE



202 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED X JB " B ¥ it A B 2 ¥

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43.

44.

Particulars of the Principal
Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(a) The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and
practically no entitlement to dividend of profit or distribution

on winding up.

(b) These are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the
PRC and are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or

another member firm of the Ernst & Young network.

(c) These entities were part of the Disposal Group and ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Company upon the completion of the
disposal.

The above summary lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

Save as aforesaid, none of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities in issue at any time during the year or at the end of the

year.

Approval of the Financial
Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors of the Company on 20 March 2015.

43.

44.

EEME AR Z I ()

(a) BRFREELER DLW ERZENER LI E
RERBNZREREEREZEDK -

(b) BT R B S 2 AN A g bk - AR
EERBRKE AN EBPIRE M2 K& 5D
EBRBEBRKEER -

EERBRLEEEZ 5 REETK
ETNBREARBZHBRF -

1>:\m«

(c)

=N

UNEFMIREFTRRUAREFEREANKE
ERERBREZARNRIEWNBLAR - EF
RRREEMHBRR 2 FHBERBNRILE

Bk LAt E SN - RAREE A SRS R REMR
[ WEME AR EITERIES

S 5 R A AL e

MBHRREN_T—AF=A_THEAR
BIEESHERIRETIE -
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling BERAEFRFERASEMNEE  BE  BERIE
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from TS E (e R 2 ESTBHRK) 25

the published audited financial statements is set out below. MNREK o
RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

—e-mE _F-SF T —F F—F F—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
FRn  THn  T#T Twr T

REVENUE A 124,668 200,556 164,169 152271 129,979
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX REFELEER

FROM CONTINUING ZBRBATER

OPERATIONS (BB’) 3,328 27,406 24,007 (472) (6,630)
INCOME TAX EXPENSES FriSBiBA (2,786) (5533) (4,811) (4,893) (4,849)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REFERSEER

FROM CONTINUING ZAREERRN

OPERATIONS (E518) 542 21,873 19,196 (5,365) (11,479)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM RECKRIEEKZ

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS wA L (EE) - - - (19,201) 2772

REERA

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (B8 542 21,873 19,196 (24,566) (8707)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: MER

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ERATEEA 1,029 21,812 19,154 (14,769)  (13,646)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JEiE IR RS (487) 61 42 (9,797) 4,939

542 21,873 19,196  (24566)  (8,707)




204 ORIENT VICTORY CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED X JB " B & it A B 2 ¥

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AR T B AR

31December2014 —E—MNF+-A=+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERERE

At 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

—-mE _F-SEF-—F _F—F F—FE
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET  TET T TER

TOTAL ASSETS WmEE 185,982 471,429 452,508 506,181 565,655
TOTAL LIABILITIES Hwas (56,503)  (257426)  (266802)  (353,627)  (372,553)
TOTAL EQUITY kS 129,479 214,003 185,706 152,554 193,100
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: MER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ENTEEA 122,349 192,489 165,019 131,874 152,141
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEERES 7,130 21514 20,687 20,680 40,959

129,479 214,003 185,706 152,554 193,100




SR PEY

B BT B EE 25 %
ol 2603

2603, 26/F, Harbour Center,
25 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

www.orientvictorychina.com.hk



	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover


